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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MERE

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 Change
FTEx TET &
(Restated)
(&%)
Turnover EEE
Jewellery retail KRETE 5,922,590 5,358,053 +11%
Other businesses Hfth 7% 3,540,846 4,522,376 -22%
9,463,436 9,880,429 -4%
Profit attributable to shareholders RATRIRRER
of the Company FE1E 5 A 574,090 469,715 +22%
Basic earnings per share FREARRF 95.4 cents fll  78.0 cents fli +22%
Dividend per share RS
- Final - REA 26.0 cents fli  23.0 cents L +13%
— Full Year -2F 33.0 cents i 31.0 cents I +6%
Dividend payout ratio 2L & 35% 40%
Equity attributable to shareholders RARRER
of the Company FE(hHERE 3,928,790 3,205,768 +23%
Equity per share ShER $6.5 T $5.3 7T +23%
Turnover Return on shareholders' equity
Vear EEH BREZE G
FH o
2009 3,540 9463 P
16
2008 4,522 9,880 147% 14.6%
2007 3,755 7,874
2006 4,196 6,981
2005 3,380 5,761
0 2,000 4,000 6,000 8,000 10,000
HK$'M
W Jewellery retail HKEZTH® Other businesses Hfth %75 BEBT
Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company 6
Year ZF’AEHQ?E{E%*U
Fh
2009 574,090 4
2008 469,715
2007 516,278 2
2006 296,838 0| ! ! | |
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
2005 187,330 Year
0 100,000 200,000 300,000 400,000 500,000 _ 600,000 1
HK$'000
FAT
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CHAIRMAN'S REPORT

In 2009, the Group reported
HK$574 million in net profit
after tax, advancing HK$104
million or 22% over that of
2008.

As the fear of human swine
flu receded, the gloom that
shrouded Hong Kong during
the first half of the year
started to lift in the third
quarter. As we had been
running down our inventory,
we quickly changed tack
d again as sales started to pick

up. Legions of visitors from
the Mainland, amongst whom were residents of Shenzhen who were
recently permitted to apply for outward visas without having to return
to their original domiciles, returned to Hong Kong to allow the retail
sector to make up for lost time and more during the fourth quarter,
The Christmas season turned out to be one of the strongest for the
Group, despite the fact that gold price breached US$1,200 per ounce in
December.

The patronage of Mainland visitors in Hong Kong notwithstanding, the
main engine of growth of the Group sits solidly in the Mainland. As of
writing, the Group has 157 shops there, spreading across some 62 cities.
Already, there are more than 19 shops in the pipeline to be opened in
the course of the year.

The buoyant atmosphere continued into 2010 on the strength of
Mainlanders’ spending, but the outlook is far from certain. Economies
the world over are still liable to setbacks which could have ripple effects
on Hong Kong's own. The Group needs to be as nimble and quick
acting as possible in such a volatile atmosphere.

| would like to thank our staff, our customers and partners, and not the

least our shareholders for their having given us the trust and support
that enabled us to ride out an eventful year.

/AN

CHOW Kwen Lim
Chairman

Hong Kong
30 March 2010
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling, aged 86, is a Non-executive Director of the
Company, the Honorary Chairman of the Group and a director of a
number of subsidiaries within the Group. He is the elder brother of
Dr. CHOW Kwen Lim. As a founder of the Group, Mr. CHOW served
as the Group General Manager from 1973 to 1986 and the Group
Chairman from 1973 to 1990. He was elected the Honorary Chairman
upon retiring as Chairman in 1990. He is well experienced in corporate
management.

Dr. CHOW Kwen Lim, BBS, MBE, JP, DSSc (Hon), aged 83, is an
Executive Director of the Company, the Group Chairman and a director
of a number of subsidiaries within the Group. He is the younger brother
of Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling and the father of Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing
Shing, the Group’s General Manager. Dr. CHOW was the Group General
Manager from 1986 to 1997, and having been the Group Chairman
since 1990. As a founder of the Group, he has been in the jewellery
business for over 60 years. He was awarded Doctor of Social Science,
Honoris Causa by The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1998 and
is an Honorary Professor of the Fudan University and a member of the
Board of the Journal of Shunde Polytechnic. He is also an Honorary
Citizen of the cities of Guangzhou, Foshan, Changle, Lanzhou and
Dunhuang, PRC.

Dr. CHAN Bing Fun, MB, BS, DMRT, FHKCR, FHKAM (Radiology),
aged 76, is an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company,
and a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. He has been with the Group
for over 30 years. He is a medical doctor in private practice in Hong
Kong.

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing, BBS, MBE, JP, aged 63, is an
Executive Director of the Company, the Group General Manager and a
director of a number of subsidiaries within the Group. He is the son of
Dr. CHOW Kwen Lim, the Group's Chairman. Mr. CHOW has been with
the Group for over 25 years, having been the Group General Manager
since 1998. He is the Treasurer of the Council of the City University of
Hong Kong, where he is also the Chairman of the Board of Management
of the Community College of City University. Mr. CHOW serves as the
vice-chairman of the Committee on Performing Arts under the Home
Affairs Bureau, and he is on the Investigation Panel A of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is a member of the Shunde
People’s Political Consultative Committee.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing, DDS, MBA, MPA (HARVARD),
aged 53, is an Executive Director of the Company. He is a member of
the Nomination Committee of the Company and a director of a number
of subsidiaries within the Group. He has joined the Group for over 20
years. Dr. CHOW is the elder brother of Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing
and the cousin of Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing. Dr. CHOW has been
the Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Hong Kong Whole Person
Development Institute (WPDI) since October 2009. He is involved with
the Institute’s strategic planning and business development in China.
Prior to joining WPDI, Dr. CHOW was a dental practitioner in Hong
Kong for over 25 years. Dr. CHOW is a current part-time member of
the Central Policy Unit of the Hong Kong Government. He also serves
in the Central and Western District Fight Crime Committee and is
an honorary member of the Hong Kong Fire Services Officers’ Mess.
Dr. CHOW has been a voting member of the Po Leung Kuk Advisory
Board since 1997. Dr. CHOW is also a council member of The Better
Hong Kong Foundation and a member of the Bauhinia Foundation
Research Centre.

Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel, MH, FCCA, FCPA (Practising),
FTIHK, ACA, FHKloD, aged 56, was an Independent Non-executive
Director and the Secretary of the Company until September 2004. He
was re-designated as a Non-executive Director of the Company on
28 September 2004. Mr. TING is a member of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is an independent
non-executive director of eight other listed companies in Hong Kong,
namely Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co., Ltd., Tongda Group Holdings
Limited, Minmetals Resources Limited, JLF Investment Company Limited,
Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited, Texhong Textile Group
Limited, Dongyue Group Limited and China SCE Property Holdings
Limited. He is a member of the 9th and 10th Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, Fujian. Mr. TING is an accountant
in public practice and has more than 30 years of experience in this
field. Currently, he is the Managing Partner of Ting Ho Kwan & Chan,
Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam, SBS, OBE, JP, LL.B (Hons) (Lond.) A.C.I. Arb,
aged 69, is a Non-executive Director of the Company, and a member
of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. He was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 26 June 1995 and re-
designated as a Non-executive Director in September 2004. Mr. CHUNG
is a solicitor in practice. Apart from being a China-appointed Attesting
Officer, he also holds key posts in various organizations. He serves as a
member on several advisory committees of the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region, and is also an independent non-
executive director of two other listed companies in Hong Kong, namely
S E A Holdings Limited and Datronix Holdings Limited.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing, aged 52, is an Executive Director of
the Company, the Group Deputy General Manager and a director of a
number of subsidiaries within the Group. Mr. CHOW has been with the
Group since 1984 (except 1988 to 1992) and has become the Group
Deputy General Manager since 1995. Mr. CHOW is the younger brother
of Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing and the cousin of Mr. Vincent CHOW
Wing Shing. He has experience in real estate in Canada. Mr. CHOW's
key responsibilities include the marketing of the Group's jewellery
business in Greater China. He also acts as the Chairman of the Diamond
Federation of Hong Kong, China Limited, Governing Council Member
of the Quality Tourism Services Association, a member of the Advisory
Committee on Travel Agents, a member of the Jewellery Industry
Training Advisory Committee of the Education Bureau, a Sector/Subject
Specialist of the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and
Vocational Qualifications and an Executive Committee member of The
Hong Kong Retail Management Association. Mr. CHOW is a member of
the Guangzhou Municipal Tianhe District People’s Political Consultative
Committee.

Mr. LEE Ka Lun, FCCA, CPA, aged 55, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, and the chairman of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company on 28 September 2004. Mr. LEE is an accountant by profession
and has over 25 years of experience in banking and auditing. He was the
Regional Deputy Chief Executive of Lloyds TSB Bank plc and Regional
Director — Finance and Operation of Lloyds TSB's operations in Asia
for over 15 years and has extensive experience on corporate banking,
private banking, treasury, operations, IT developments and general
management. He is also a responsible officer approved by the Securities
and Futures Commission and serves as an independent director of three
other listed companies in Hong Kong, namely Denway Motors Limited
(being chairman of the audit committee), Yuexiu Property Company
Limited (formerly known as “Guangzhou Investment Company Limited”)
and REXLot Holdings Limited.

Mr. LO King Man, FRSA, FHKU, UFHKPU, FHKAPA, JP, MBE, BBS,
aged 72, is an Independent Non-executive Director, a member of the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
of the Company. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 28 September 2004. Following a career in
higher education management, Mr. LO held appointments as Director
of the Hong Kong Academy for Performing Arts during 1993 to 2004
and as Principal of the Canton International Summer Music Academy
established by the Guangdong Government during 2004 to 2009. His
public service included vice-chairmanship of the former Urban Council
and membership of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Basic
Law Consultative Committee, Examination Authority, Broadcasting
Authority, Vocational Training Council and Arts Development Council.
He has served on governing boards of numerous educational and
cultural organizations. He is an independent non-executive director
of another listed company in Hong Kong - Sing Lee Software (Group)
Limited.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Theodore TAM Shing Chi, CPA (Aust.), CPA, MBA, aged 51, is
the Company Secretary of the Company and the Group’s Chief Financial
Officer. Mr. TAM joined the Group in 2009 and has over 25 years of
experience in finance, accounting and management. Mr. TAM is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and
the CPA Australia. He holds a Master Degree in Business Administration
from the Melbourne University, Australia. Mr. TAM's experiences
covered a variety of industries including auditing, business advisory
services with one of the Big Four accounting firms in Hong Kong as well
as the Regional Chief Financial Officer of one of the top three marketing
communication services companies in Asia Pacific.

Ms. Susan MAK Wei Yee, FCCA, CPA, aged 53, is the General
Manager of Chow Sang Sang Securities Limited. Ms. MAK joined the
Group in 2001 and has over 30 years of experience in accounting,
banking and finance. Ms. MAK is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.

Mr. LAU Hak Bun, aged 57, is the Group's Director of Sales Operations.
Mr. LAU has been with the Group for over 35 years. He is well-
experienced in sales management. Apart from managing the sales
operations in Hong Kong and Macau, Mr. LAU is also responsible for
the Group’s operation in Mainland China. He serves as the executive
committees of several trade associations as the Group'’s representative.

Ms. Emily LI Yin Ming, aged 50, is the Group’s Brand General
Manager for “Chow Sang Sang”, overseeing the development of
branding, new business and marketing. Prior to joining the Company in
2005, Ms. LI was the Managing Director of her own jewellery marketing
company, providing consultancy services to international renowned
jewellery organizations. Before Ms. LI became an entrepreneur in 2003,
she was with the World Gold Council for 10 years playing a key role in
gold jewellery market development for East Asia. Ms. LI was awarded
the “China 100 Outstanding Women Entrepreneur” in 2007.

Ms. Carol WONG May Chun, aged 46, is the Group’s Brand Director
for "Emphasis Jewellery”. Ms. WONG joined the Group in 2004
and is responsible for Emphasis Jewellery’s total branding, including
product development, marketing, as well as channel development and
management. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. WONG held key posts in
various internationally-renowned fashion and accessories companies and
has extensive experience in brand management and marketing, with
major focus on developing Asia Pacific markets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Overview

There has been no substantive change in the scope and model of the
Group's business in 2009. The main business is jewellery retail in Hong
Kong and Macau, Mainland China and Taiwan. In Hong Kong there
is a securities and futures brokerage, as well as an operation in the
wholesale of precious metals and related products.

The retail sector in Hong Kong bounced back to life in the second half
after a worrying second quarter, during which concern over human
swine flu throttled the flow of visitors to a trickle.

When fear of the flu finally subsided, Mainlanders were given more
impetus to visit Hong Kong as applications to travel were made simpler
and easier and they arrived in droves.

These customers were unfazed by the gold price, which made a sharp
rise to above US$1,200 per ounce and then stayed at around US$1,100
per ounce. Indeed, business from Mainlanders accounted for over
50% of the turnover at some of the Group’s shops, and from the third
quarter on drove the turnover up until a new record was reached in the
month of December.

Thanks to the recovery in the second half, the Group was able to
achieve total turnover of HK$9,463 million. The drop of 4% from 2008
was due to a reduction in the wholesale of gold; but the concomitant
loss in profit was offset by other wholesale trading. Total profits
attributable to shareholders rose by 22% to HK$574 million.

Jewellery Retail

Total turnover rose by 11% to HK$5,923 million with the Mainland
operation registering the highest percentage increase. The Mainland
operation was responsible for 32% of the total turnover, up from 28%
of the previous year. In terms of operating profit it contributed 47% of
the total, as compared with 26% in 2008.

Hong Kong and Macau

In 2009, turnover rose by 5% to HK$3,962 million, thanks mostly to
a very strong December. For 2009, Mainlanders contributed 37% of
turnover, an increase of 6% over 2008.

At year end, there were 36 Chow Sang Sang shops, one less than the
previous year, whereas Emphasis Jewellery had 14, three of which were
new additions in Hong Kong.

Despite hikes in the gold price, sales of gold jewellery were well
supported by purchases by Mainland visitors and by demand for bridal
gifts. Although both turnover and gross profits went up, those were
offset by increases in expenditure. Rental expenses went up substantially,
with the opening of the Central shop and the renewal of the lease
for the Canton Road shop being the major contributors. The fitting
out works for the megastores also drove up depreciation expenses by
notable amounts.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Jewellery Retail (continued)

Hong Kong and Macau (continued)

Emphasis Jewellery opened three new shops, at Harbour City, Pacific
Place and International Finance Centre respectively. These are important
additions to the network that ensures better alignment to prospective
customer segments.

The brands Chow Sang Sang, Emphasis Jewellery, and individuals
from both chains, won numerous awards and recognitions during
the year. Details of these are recorded on the website at http:/www.
chowsangsang.com/group/eng/index.htm.

Mainland China
Turnover increased by 25% to HK$1,875 million in 2009.

As testimony to the increasing sophistication and spending power of
the consumers, the contribution to turnover from the sales of gem-set
jewellery rose by 13% and the sales of items costing HK$50,000 and
more rose by 75%.

In the Mainland itself, 29 new shops were opened during the year. The
list of cities with shops expanded to include Baotou (Inner Mongolia),
Tangshan (Hebei), Changshu (Jiangsu), Taizhou (Jiangsu) and Zhuzhou
(Hunan). The total number of shops stood at 143 at the end of the year.
In September a flagship-class store was opened in Shanghai's Nanjing
Road East. Same-store growth in turnover was 14%.

The full-floor premise acquired in Guangzhou was officially recognized
as headquarters for the Mainland operation, qualifying the Group
for benefits and tax concessions made available by the municipal
government.

In Xian, a smaller unit was bought and fitted out as the office for the
operation responsible for the western provinces.

Taiwan

Turnover of Emphasis Jewellery rose by 10% to HK$86 million. The
improvement could be attributed to a sharper focus on merchandising
and more cohesive teamwork.

The number of shops remained at 21 at the end of the year.

Wholesale of Precious Metals

Physical trading in gold and platinum is a low margin, high volume
business. Turnover experienced substantial swings as gold and platinum
prices went through relatively large movements during the year.

The volume of trading in gold dropped significantly, driving down
turnover by 22% to HK$3,410 million. But by successfully engaging in
the handling of the metals rhodium, palladium and iridium, operating
profits rose by 104% to HK$28 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Securities and Futures Broking

Retail investors followed the flow of liquid capital into the stock market
and drove the Hang Seng Index to end the year at 7,000 points above
where it was a year ago. While there was a 14% drop in the average
daily turnover in the market, the Group recorded a rise of 23% over
2008. Commission income from securities broking increased by 23%
as well, although commission rate remained in a downward trend.
Participation in 62 IPOs added to the income. Interest income from client
loans fell, however, as loan volume diminished.

On the brick and mortar side, the Yuen Long Branch was renovated in
order to provide better service and promote the corporate image. On
the internet platform, margin and mobile trading were made available
for clients’ convenience. Two more branches will be renovated in 2010
but the capital expenditure will be small.

This segment registered for the year an increase in turnover of
25% to HK$40.7 billion, and a 73% increase in operating profits to
HK$54 million.

Investments

Properties

The Group holds various properties for the main purpose of
accommodation for offices, shops and factories. Rental income from
investment properties amounted to HK$10 million, less than 1% of the
Group's turnover.

A small property consisting of factory space was disposed of in the year.

Shares in Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEC”)

The shares of HKEC resulting from the reorganization of the exchanges
in 2000 have been held since the distribution, with no plans for
their disposal. As at 1 January 2009 and 1 January 2010, the Group
held 4,953,500 shares and the unrealized gain on the holding was
HK$690 million as compared to HK$364 million in 2008.

Finance

Financial Position and Liquidity

The Group centralizes funding for its operations through the corporate
treasury based in Hong Kong. The treasury at the same time manages
the Group’s gold and foreign exchange holdings. Centralization affords
better control and lower costs. As at 31 December 2009, the Group had
cash and cash equivalents of HK$379 million, and total undrawn bank
loans and other credit facilities of HK$1,566 million.

The Group’s jewellery retail segment generates strong recurrent
cashflow.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance (continued)

Financial Position and Liquidity (continued)

As far as possible banking facilities are obtained on an unsecured basis.
Total borrowings as at 31 December 2009 stood at HK$598 million.
With the Group’s total shareholders’ equity of HK$3,929 million, the
gearing ratio is 15%. The current ratio as at 31 December 2009 was 3.

Cash is mostly held in Hong Kong dollar or Renminbi and deposited
with leading banks.

The Group manages risks of credit cost and availability by several means:
cultivating relationship with a large number of lending banks; putting
some loans on a term basis; and fixing interest costs by executing rate
swaps on loans as appropriate.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group's foreign exchange exposure relates to the currencies in
which it carries on its business: Renminbi, New Taiwan dollar, US dollar,
Euro and Japanese Yen. As such, the risk is easily manageable and slight.
As at 31 December 2009, total foreign currency borrowings excluding
Renminbi amounted to HK$7 million (2008: HK$16 million). For the
operation in Mainland China, Renminbi borrowings at year end stood at
RMB301 million (2008: RMB256 million).

The Group’s assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses are mostly
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi and US dollar.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2009, certain items of properties of the Group with
a net carrying value of HK$141 million (2008: HK$135 million), and
listed equity investments of HK$204 million (2008: HK$74 million) were
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

Human Resources

The total number of employees of the Group was 4,129 as at 31
December 2009. Of these 2,732 (66%) are in the Mainland.

The Group has performance-based remuneration policies, training
infrastructure and other human resources policies which have remained
unchanged from prior years.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Outlook

The strong spending in Hong Kong by Mainland visitors carried over
from December all the way through the Lunar New Year holidays.
Likewise in the Mainland, business was brisk throughout the holiday
period.

Diamond jewellery was in demand as were gift items in pure gold.
The Group has readjusted its inventory levels in order to meet this
heightened demand.

More collaboration with the watch brands Rolex and Tudor is being
sought. Indeed in January 2010 two boutiques featuring the two brands
have been opened in Chengdu and Hong Kong.

It appears that as far as consumer spending is concerned, the credit
crunch and the flu epidemic are already things of the past. However,
banks worldwide are not all back in health; and in Mainland China
credit may yet be subject to tighter control as effort to cool off parts of
the economy mounts.

Obviously there is great potential for growth in the Mainland. However,
to exploit it, the Group must stay ahead of its competition which is
heating up extremely rapidly. As of writing, the Group has 157 shops in
the Mainland, spreading across some 62 cities. Already, there are more
than 19 shops in the pipeline, and the target is to set up 50 new shops
by the end of 2010. Maintaining and refining service quality, innovation
and creativity in product development and marketing are imperative.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009.

Principal Activities

The Group's principal activities remained unchanged during the year
and consisted of the manufacture and retail of jewellery, wholesale of
precious metals, and securities, futures and commodities broking.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the
financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2009 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group as at that date are set out in
the financial statements on pages 30 to 118.

An interim dividend of HK7.0 cents per ordinary share was paid on
24 September 2009. The Directors recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK26.0 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members on 10
June 2010. This recommendation has been incorporated in the financial
statements as an allocation of retained profits within the equity section
of the statement of financial position.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results for the year and of the assets,
liabilities and minority interests of the Group as at 31 December 2009
and for the last seven financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out below.
This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Summary Financial Information (continued)

Results

3|

Turnover
Jewellery retai
Other businesses

Operating profit
Share of profits and
losses of associates

Profit before tax
Income tax

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Shareholders of the
Company
Minority interests

PRt a &N
FiEH

FRER

FiREH -
KRR

HEhRER

Assets, Liabilities and Minority Interests

BE AEROBRRER

Total assets
Total liabilities
Minority interests

EEEH

MHERBE ()

Year ended 31 December

HEtZR=t-ALFE

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn FiEn Firn Firn FiErn TiErn Tirn TEn
(Restated)
(E71)
5,922,590 5,358,053 4.119,165 2,785,254 2,380,503 2,247,058 1,820,295 1,850,771
3,540,846 4,522,376 3,754,418 4,196,226 3,380,151 4,770,033 4,508,114 2,966,788
9,463,436 9,880,429 7,873,583 6,981,480 5,760,654 7,017,091 6,328,409 4,817,559
770,011 594,165 644,660 366,696 216,892 238,544 151,786 80,661
1,222 (420) 73 1,200 165 2317 410 143
11,233 593,745 645,433 367,89 217,057 240,861 152,196 80,304
(182,834) (112,036) (110,851) (61,395) (26,670) (37,200) (35,593) (18,305)
588,399 481,709 534,582 306,501 190,387 203,661 116,603 61,999
574,090 469,715 516,278 296,838 187,330 200,388 115,655 62,251
14,309 11,994 18,304 9,663 3,057 2,773 948 (252)
588,399 481,709 534,582 306,501 190,387 203,661 116,603 61,999
As at 31 December
R+=A=1-H
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn FiErn Fin Firn FiEn Firn TiErn TiEn
(Restated)
(E71)
5,650,782 4,464,843 5,086,561 3,600,101 2,666,365 2,616,514 2,364,341 2,151,295
(1,674,000  (1,206,772)  (1,395,864) (997,974) (540,306) (636,911) (503,228) (447 382)
(47,922) (52,303) (56,428) (44,486) (33,600) (18,799) (16,582) (13,519)
3,928,790 3,205,768 3,634,269 2,557,641 2,092,459 1,960,804 1,844,531 1,690,394
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Charitable Contributions

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$54,000.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in notes
14 and 15 to the financial statements, respectively. Further details of
the Group's properties are set out on pages 119 and 120 of this annual
report.

Share Capital

There were no movements in either the Company’s authorized or issued
share capital during the year.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed Securities of the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries, purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 31(b) to the financial statements and
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2009, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, amounted to HK$1,252,552,000, of
which HK$156,499,000 has been proposed as a final dividend for the
year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of the total sales for the year. Purchases
from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 54% of the total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein accounted for 19%.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in
the Group’s five largest suppliers.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive Directors:

Dr. CHOW Kwen Lim

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling

Dr. CHAN Bing Fun*

Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam

Mr. LEE Ka Lun*

Mr. LO King Man*

* Independent Non-executive Directors

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling,
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing and Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel will
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company up to the date of this report are set out on pages 4 to 7 of
this annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as detailed in note 36 to the financial statements, no Director
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors’ Interests in Shares

As at 31 December 2009, the interests of the Directors in the issued
share capital of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Long positions:

EERkO RS

RZZBZAF+A=+—H KEHR
HAE 5P )26 352 R AR RIZA T iR 1F 2 A M
AR RBE LM RRIEFETES
Ry AFESTA(MRESTAI ) BBRAR
ARBERABMARSMARRRI(IBRAM])
A tEn  SEFRARAISEER
B(EEA(EHRAEEMDFEXVE) B %
TR 2 s T

#a:

Number of shares held

BhREAE
Percentage of
the Company’s
Personal Family Corporate Trustee issued share
Name of Directors interest interest interest interest Total capital
NG
BRIRE
£33 BAER FEER L 35 EEAER @y BAtt
Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling AELRE - - 53,909,932 - 53,909,932 8.96
Dr. CHOW Kwen Lim REREL - - - 137,591,595 137,591,595 22.86
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun RRBEE 1,320,000 - - - 1,320,000 0.22
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing kB4 - - - 137,591,595 % 137,591,595 22.86
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing FHAEL 19,711,680 70,398 ¥ 21,000,000 ¥ 42,000,000 % 82,782,078 13.75
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing BakEE 7,681,104 52,8007 - 74616000 82,349,904 13.68

Please refer to the explanatory notes in the section headed “Substantial
Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares”.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, none of the
Directors had registered an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares

As at
share

31 December 2009, the interests of those persons in the issued
capital of the Company as recorded in the register of interests

required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

Long positions:

Name Capacity

=1 g4

Everwin Company Limited Beneficial Owner
ERBAA

Happy Inc. Beneficial Owner
BERFAA

Happy Family Limited Beneficial Owner

RERERR AT EERAA

Value Partners Limited Investment Manager
REEEA

Top Fit Investments Limited Beneficial Owner
ERFAA

CWS Holdings Limited Beneficial Owner
ERFAA

Notes:

M

53,909,932 shares in the Company were held by Happy Family Limited,
in which Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling and his spouse owned 40% of the
equity interest. Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling and his spouse were deemed to
have interests in the 53,909,932 shares in the Company. The difference
in the number of shares reported by Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling and Happy
Family Limited, being 300,000 shares, was due to the acquisition
of the said shares by Happy Family Limited not constituting a whole
number percentage change of interest and therefore was not subject to
notification under the SFO.

137,591,595 shares in the Company were held by a discretionary trust
of which Dr. CHOW Kwen Lim and Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing were
among the beneficiaries. The trustee of the trust was Cititrust (Cayman)
Limited, which held the interests in the Company through the following
companies:

Name of companies
REJETE

Everwin Company Limited
Golden Court Limited

Accordingly, Cititrust (Cayman) Limited was deemed to have interest in
the 137,591,595 shares. Dr. CHOW Kwen Lim and Mr. Vincent CHOW
Wing Shing, and their respective spouse, were deemed to have interests
in the 137,591,595 shares in the Company.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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ETEHS
TERRRHEHMGATARGREBERSG 2
B
RIZZNF+-_A=1T—H REEFH

FEEEDIE 336 AARATHRELZ
EaAMLeAEERARRIEEITRAA

TR

55—
Percentage of the
Number of Company's issued
shares held share capital
EEDATCRIT
BEREE BRAFDH
120,000,000 @ 19.94
66,000,000 10.96
53,609,932 8.91
48,174,000 ¥ 8.00
42,000,000 @ 6.98
32,616,000 @ 5.42
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k&
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares (continued)

3)

70,398 shares and 52,800 shares in the Company were held by the
respective spouse of Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing and Mr. Winston CHOW
Wun Sing.

21,000,000 shares in the Company were held by Speed Star Holdings
Limited, a company beneficially owned by Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing
and his spouse.

42,000,000 shares in the Company were held by Top Fit Investments
Limited, a company beneficially owned by a discretionary trust of which
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing and Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing were
the beneficiaries. The trustee of the trust was HSBC Trustee (Cook
Islands) Limited and, accordingly, it was deemed to have interests in the
42,000,000 shares in the Company.

32,616,000 shares in the Company were held by CWS Holdings Limited, a
company beneficially owned by a discretionary trust of which Mr. Winston
CHOW Wun Sing is the founder and one of the beneficiaries. The trustee
of the trust was UBS TC (Jersey) Ltd. and, accordingly, it was deemed to
have interests in the 32,616,000 shares in the Company.

Accordingly, Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing and his spouse were deemed
to have interests in the 63,070,398 shares and 82,711,680 shares in the
Company, respectively. Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing and his spouse
were deemed to have interests in the 74,668,800 shares and 82,297,104
shares in the Company, respectively.

48,174,000 shares in the Company were held by a discretionary trust of
which Mr. CHEAH Cheng Hye is the founder. The trustee of the trust was
Hang Seng Bank Trustee International Limited (“HSB”), which held the
interests in the Company through its indirect control over Value Partners
Limited.

Value Partners Limited is 100% controlled by Value Partners Group
Limited (“VPGL"), which in turn is a 35.65%-controlled company of
Cheah Capital Management Limited (“CCML"). CCML is 100% controlled
by Cheah Company Limited (“CCL"), which in turn is a 100%-controlled
company of HSB.

Accordingly, Mr. CHEAH Cheng Hye, his spouse, HSB, VPGL, CCML and
CCL were deemed to have interests in the 48,174,000 shares in the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, no person, other
than the Directors of the Company whose interests are set out in the
section "Directors’ Interests in Shares” above, had registered an interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Connected Transactions

Connected transactions, which also constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, undertaken by the Group
during the year are set out in note 36 to the financial statements.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed
that the relevant continuing connected transactions had been entered
into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third parties;
and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions during the year as set out in note 36(a)(i) and (ii) to the
financial statements and confirmed that these transactions:

(i)  were approved by the Board of Directors of the Company;

(i) where applicable, were in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Company;

(iii)  had been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the transactions*; and

(iv) have not exceeded the caps stated in the relevant announcement.

* The transactions were reviewed on a sample basis by virtue of the vast
numbers of transactions pertaining to the related agreements thereto.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
a sufficient public float throughout the year and up to the date of this
report.

Auditors

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

CHOW Kwen Lim
Chairman

Hong Kong
30 March 2010
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Governance Practices

The Group as a whole strives to adhere to the highest standards of
transparency, accountability and corporate governance. The Company
has complied with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) for the
financial year ended 31 December 2009.

The Board

Board composition
The Board comprises four Executive Directors (“ED"), three Non-
executive Directors (“NED”) and three Independent Non-executive
Directors (“INED").

Chairman and Group General Manager

The Chairman ensures that the Board functions properly in compliance
with good corporate governance practices, and the Group General
Manager leads the management in the daily operation of the Group.
For the year under review, Dr. CHOW Kwen Lim and Mr. Vincent CHOW
Wing Shing continued to hold the positions as the Group's Chairman
and Group General Manager, respectively.

Independence of Directors

Save for the family relationships disclosed in the biographical details set
out on pages 4 to 6 of this annual report, the Directors do not have
material financial, business or other relationships with one another.

The Company has received from each INED written annual confirmation
of their independence as required under the Listing Rules and therefore
considers all INEDs to be independent.

Re-election of Directors

All Directors are subject to re-election by shareholders at the annual
general meeting (“AGM") at least once every three years on a rotational
basis. All NEDs and INEDs are appointed for specific terms of three
years.

Three Directors, namely Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling, Mr. Winston CHOW Wun
Sing and Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel will retire at the conclusion of
the forthcoming AGM and all of them are eligible for re-election. Details
of these Directors who are seeking re-election at the forthcoming AGM
are set out in the shareholders’ circular dated 23 April 2010.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board (continued)

Directors’ liability insurance

Appropriate liability insurance, the coverage of which is reviewed
annually, has been arranged to indemnify the Directors' risk exposure
arising out of corporate activities.

Securities transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as the Company’'s code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions. Directors are reminded on a regular
basis of their obligations under the Model Code.

Upon specific enquiries, all Directors confirmed their compliance with
the required standard as set out in the Model Code for the year ended
31 December 20009.

Employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-
sensitive information of the Group are also subject to compliance with
written internal guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model
Code.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Group. It determines the overall strategic direction and management
objectives, oversees significant operational and financial matters and
ensures a framework of risk controls is in place.

The Company has provided to each Director a Directors’ Manual, which
includes the statutory obligations, duties and responsibilities for being a
director. The Directors’ Manual is updated from time to time to reflect
the latest developments in those areas.

Internal guidelines with continuing updates in areas on the Company'’s
and the Directors’ obligations under the Listing Rules, and the latest
development or material changes on ordinances, rules or regulations are
provided to Directors from time to time.

The Board has delegated day-to-day operations to management, who
is responsible for implementing the Group’s business strategies and
managing the daily business operations under the leadership of the
Group General Manager and the Group Deputy General Manager, who
are both EDs.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board (continued)

Management support

All Directors were kept informed on a timely basis of major changes
that may have affected the Group’s businesses. Comprehensive Board
papers are prepared and distributed quarterly to Directors to keep them
informed.

Directors have free access to management for additional information, as
and when required and may solicit independent professional advice at
the Company's expenses.

Board Committees

The Board is supported by three committees, namely Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.

Audit Committee

Its principal role is to monitor the integrity of the Group's financial
statements, oversee the Group’s financial reporting systems, internal
control procedures and the relationship with the external auditors. Its
members possess appropriate professional qualifications, accounting or
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

In 2009, the Committee’s review included the Group's accounting
principles and practices, the development in accounting standards and
the associated impacts on the Group, the risk management issues, the
compliance, strategy summary and financial reporting matters, and the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system. The Committee
discussed the above matters, where appropriate, with management and
the external auditors.

Remuneration Committee

Its responsibilities include reviewing and making recommendations to
the Board for approval on the remuneration policies and packages for
Directors and senior management.

The remuneration of Directors consists of a basic annual fee with
additional payments for serving on Committees. It is not set on an
individual basis. EDs receive additional pay packages by virtue of their
positions in management.

During the year, the Committee met once to review the salaries of
senior management, staff bonus scheme, as well as Directors’ fees for
the period from October 2009 to September 2010.

Nomination Committee

Its responsibilities include periodic review of the constituency of the
Board and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment of
directors. Its aim is to ensure that the Board is appropriately constituted
with a balance of knowledge, skills and experience. There was no
nomination of directors during the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT TEERRE

Board and Committee Meetings EZEeRZESER
The attendance of individual Directors in Board and Committees BRZEER_ZTNFRIZESTERE
meetings held in 2009 is set out below: EggR L RaEHIMT
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Directors Board Committee  Committee = Committee
== EEg ERZEES YMEES REZEE
No. of meetings held
during the year FREBTEIRH 4 2 1 0
Executive Directors: HITES
Dr. CHOW Kwen Lim EEREL 2/4 - - -
Chairman FE
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing kB %4 4/4 - - -
Group General Manager EEErE
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing R B A 3/4 - - N/A
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing B EE 4/4 - - -
Group Deputy General Manager EEG B
Non-executive Directors: EHITEE :
Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling AE<xE 3/4 - - -
Honorary Chairman EEREER
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel TRERAE 3/4 2/2 171 -
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam BmMEE 4/4 2/2 171 N/A

Independent Non-executive BYFHTES !

Directors:
Mr. LEE Ka Lun IREEE 4/4 2/2 I7Al N/A
Chairman of the three Committees — =fHZE 2.2 F/E
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun EGE 4/4 212 11 N/A
Mr. LO King Man EEXhE 4/4 12 11 N/A
Date of meetings 2EAH 20/01/2009 24/03/2009 09/07/2009 N/A
31/03/2009 24/08/2009
07/07/2009
27/08/2009
- The Director is not a member - EFVHKE
N/A  Not applicable A TEH

Directors who are considered having conflict of interests or material FEEREZRHIUBETEEREFATN
interests in proposed transactions or contemplated issues are required mERABAEE RN R - HARMEBERAZ

to abstain from voting on the relevant resolution. RWERE -
Financial Reporting B A5 BE 4R
Directors’ responsibilities EEEF

The Board of Directors, through its Audit Committee, oversees the EEeRREERLZECEEAEERE
preparation of the Group's financial statements, and after examination BB RS - WA R BER T -
and approval, publishes them.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Financial Reporting (continued)

External auditors

The reporting responsibilities of the Group’s independent external
auditors, Ernst & Young, on the Group's financial statements are set out
in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 28 to 29 of this annual
report.

The Board is satisfied with the audit fees, process and effectiveness
of Ernst & Young and has recommended their reappointment as the
Company's external auditors at the forthcoming AGM. The services
provided by Ernst & Young and the associated fees thereof for 2009
were as follows:

Audit e
Taxation s
Others Hh

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for ensuring that adequate internal controls
are in place to safeqguard the Group's assets and manage risks. Policies
and procedures are designed for providing reasonable assurance
against material misstatement or loss and managing risks of failure in
operational systems and achievement of the Group's objectives.
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Major internal controls currently in place within the Group included the
following:

g%sﬁﬁZfEW%ﬁgﬂﬁurg
7

An Internal Audit team conducts regular audits of different
aspects of the operations and reports any findings to the Audit
Committee

All inventory movements are properly recorded and reconciled,
and verification and cross-checking with source documents
procedures are in place

Policies are set to cover the integrity of trading practices,
safekeeping of customer assets, and credit control for the
securities, futures and commodities broking business and
wholesale of precious metals

Major or material connected transactions of the Company require
pre-approval of INEDs

Business plans are prepared annually. Income and expenditure are
subject to regular budgetary review

Information access is managed on a need-to-know basis.
Guidelines and procedures are in place to protect personal data
and to ensure the integrity of communication systems
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Internal Control (continued)

The Board and the Audit Committee have reviewed the Group’s internal
control system for the year ended 31 December 2009, with reference to
the internal audit reports and the representations made by management
and concluded that adequate and effective internal controls are being
maintained. The annual review also considers the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.
There were no significant areas of concern identified during the year.

Corporate Communication

Investor communication
Aside from annual reports and interim reports, the Group disseminates
timely information on its websites to investors and consumers alike.

Management also attend meetings with financial analysts and fund
managers from time to time. These meetings allow management
to maintain close contact with investors which facilitate their
understanding of the Group's strategies and operations.

Internal communication

The Group's staff members are linked by the Company’s intranet for
prompt sharing of information. Regular meetings of staff members from
Hong Kong, Mainland China and Taiwan are held to share and discuss
issues on achieving the Group's strategic objectives, actual operational
practices, local rules and regulations and compliance practices.

Corporate and Social Responsibilities

Business ethics

The Group is committed to a high standard of business ethics and
integrity. Code of conduct defining the employees’ ethical standards
and the Group’s non-discriminatory employment practices have been
adopted and guidelines are posted in the Company's intranet for ease of
access by all staff.

Employees

The Group recognizes that human capital is a key asset. Therefore,
the Group places emphasis on development and retention of staff
and commits to offer a healthy and safe working environment to
employees. Guidelines on enhancing safety consciousness are in place
for compliance and reference by employees. The Group also conducts
training both in Hong Kong and in the Mainland, using in-house
and external resources as appropriate. Programmes are offered on a
variety of subjects, falling mainly into the categories of sales skills and
management technique, and pitched at different levels of experience
and expertise.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate and Social Responsibilities (continued)

Employees (continued)

Aside from basic salary, employees are rewarded with performance-
based bonuses. Fringe benefits such as paid vacation leave, insurance
are commensurate with local practices and legal requirements. Individual
performance is assessed annually within a uniform framework, which is
applied to all territories and is based on openness and objectiveness. It
is the Group's policy to abide with best practice principles, to hire the
most suitable person for the job with competitive emoluments and to
motivate staff with incentives and positive reinforcement.

Environmental protection

The Group’s commitment statement together with a comprehensive
list of tips on environmental protection, are posted on the Company'’s
intranet for easy access and reference by all staff. Employees are
encouraged to minimize use of paper and electricity, and recycle of
paper and toner cartridges. Wherever feasible packaging are made
of biodegradable material and designed to provide residual use to
consumers.

Contributions to the community

The Group provided support to educational, cultural and charitable
organizations in Hong Kong, Mainland China and Taiwan during the
year.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
BEEEBEBERAERAF

2N

hEER

&

CERHEET(E)

BT(#)

BREAFWIN ETERRBEANEHE
BZIEL « AR RIMRE B O RAZER
TREBHBRYE  REBRFEIIEF - Sit
EETIMRERARBREEETENR —IZE
FEETHZ  EEEZEUARRTEN
RAGTE - AEBE—BUERAE A
£ BRABFONTHNEEEZSEN
AWM YAEBEEEARESHE T+
ﬁ o

RIERE
AEBzARBREREBRARERT
ZHBIR BERALARARE E2
BEIHMHLZ2E - AEEZBREERD
MAERRE  LRBERSERARRKD
E o RAITH - AR DB RSB
BRARGtZBE -

HEiHE
FRAKEREE  PEANR
HE L REERBRHS -

AN 1
A /=

ANNUAL REPORT 2009
2009 F 3R



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

BULBARE

Ell ERNST & YOUNG

x K

8 Finance Street, Central, Hong Kong
Phone: 852 2846 9888
852 2868 4432

Fax:

To the shareholders of
Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Chow Sang Sang Holdings
International Limited set out on pages 30 to 118, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2009, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

BULBARE

Auditors’ responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and
true and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2009 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
30 March 2010
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
Year ended 31 December 2009

REBERER
HE_ZTHNFET_A=1—HILEE

TURNOVER
Jewellery retail
Other businesses

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Other gains, net

Finance costs

Share of profits and losses of associates

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Income tax

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
Attributable to:

Shareholders of the Company
Minority interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
Basic

Details of dividends payable and proposed for the year are disclosed in

note 12 to the financial statements.

Note
B E

EF

Hp A

HERDHER

THER

Hfpliess - #E

HHER 7
RIS = R RDE A KB R

BRBLATER R 6
st 10
FERER
eI R -

VNG 11
DY EER

AT RREMNL
BREF 13
HR

2009 2008
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
(Restated)

(&%)

5,922,590 5,358,053
3,540,846 4,522,376
9,463,436 9,880,429
(7,576,468) (8,319,364)
1,886,968 1,561,065
80,973 82,741
(946,883) (819,449)
(237,497) (218,947)
6,374 11,660
(19,924) (22,905)
1,222 (420)
771,233 593,745
(182,834) (112,036)
588,399 481,709
574,090 469,715
14,309 11,994
588,399 481,709

95.4 cents 1l

78.0 cents 1l

12 HE -

FREEMNREIRR S 2 7 5N A58 & M
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 31 December 2009

REZHBER
HE_ZTHNFET_A=1—HILEE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
(LOSSES)

Changes in fair value of available-for-sale
investments

Leasehold land and buildings:
Revaluation upon transfer to investment
properties
Deferred tax liabilities on revaluation
Deferred tax arising from change
in statutory tax rate
Release upon disposal of a property

Leasehold land and buildings revaluation
reserve transferred to retained profits
upon disposal of a property

Exchange differences on translation

Other comprehensive income/(losses)
for the year, net of tax

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
(LOSSES) FOR THE YEAR

Total comprehensive income/(losses)
attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company
Minority interests

FERER
Hit2mEkE (57)

T ERE 7 AT
A

HETHRETF :
ERERBMER
Bfh
B ZELEHRARE
EEMEEBEL
ZIBFETIA
HE B REEE

HE B REERE
RN 2 HE L1
FETEMRFRE

bE 5 AR

HRR B IRIR K F A E A
rEKE (BR)

FRE2EWNE(B1R)
BnE

EihzERE (BR)
R
NI &
DERER

Note
B E

20

14
29

29

2009
HK$'000
TERr

588,399

327,872

15,969
(2,130)

(3,059)

10,780

3,059

(14,508)
327,203

915,602

903,598
12,004

915,602

2008
HK$'000
TR

481,709

(731,514)

2,833

(9,376)

(6,543)

9,376

37,596
(691,085)

(209,376)

(223,848)
14,472

(209,376)
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BEEEBEBERAERAF

ANNUAL REPORT 2009

2009 F 3R



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2009

BEMBRRE

R-FBAFT=A=+-A

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Intangible assets

Other assets

Interests in associates

Available-for-sale investments

Deposits paid for purchase of items of
property, plant and equipment

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Accounts receivable

Receivables arising from securities and
futures broking

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Investments at fair value through
profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Tax recoverable

Cash held on behalf of clients

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Payables arising from securities and
futures broking

Other payables and accruals

Derivative financial instruments

Short term interest-bearing bank borrowings
Current portion of long term interest-bearing

bank borrowings
Tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

FRBEE

Wx - wRRRE
REME

EEE

HitpEE
NNl F
AERERE
BEYE  #aEkRE
BEZENEE
ELEHIREE

BIFRBEE

RBEE

=&

FEHUR TR
BERHERREEL
FEUYRR

BNFUR  BER

H R URRAK
BAFEEIEREEBLZ
RE

ITEEMTA

AR EIF A
REFRALE
RekERHAE

BRBEE

RBAE

ARG A
BRMHEREEEL
EANEEA

Hfto et iR & fEET 1 B
ITEEBMTA

EEE BRITER
R BRITER
A ER

TR

RBEERE

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #A&XERABHERE

Note
B E

14
15
16
17
19
20

29

21
22

22

23

24
27

25
25

26

26

27
28

28

2009
HK$'000
FET

427,888
150,840
271
77,605
11,611
705,255

4,225

1,377,695

2,884,841
326,272

201,152
84,982
8,010
180

639
388,012

378,999

4,273,087

132,231

474,205
284,430

14,096
348,644

84,666

80,238
1,418,510
2,854,577

4,232,272

2008
HK$'000
THET
(Restated)
(&%)

389,938
117,597
271
74,890
10,900
378,084

53,824

1,323

1,026,827

2,528,754
212,352

134,848
73,858
5,820
2,759

9,109
325,399

145,117

3,438,016

70,023

381,942
226,825

2,769
389,099

78,641
1,149,299
2,288,717

3,315,544

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

AEEEBEBEBEAERLQA

52/

ANNUAL REPORT 2009

2009 & %R



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION REMBERAE

As at 31 December 2009 RZEBEEAF+-_A=1+—H
2009 2008
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
B TER FHETT
(Restated)
(E51)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Long term interest-bearing bank borrowings RHEIEtBRITER 28 164,733 -
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE 29 90,827 57,473
Total non-current liabilities BIEREAEE 255,560 57,473
Net assets BEEFE 3,976,712 3,258,071
EQUITY &
Equity attributable to shareholders RAREE
of the Company FElh e
Issued capital BEITRA 30 150,480 150,480
Reserves e 31(a) 3,621,811 2,916,846
Proposed final dividend B R HIR S 12 156,499 138,442
3,928,790 3,205,768
Minority interests DB RS 47,922 52,303
Total equity R 3,976,712 3,258,071
CHOW Kwen Lim BEER Vincent CHOW Wing Shing BXK
Director B5F Director BF

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED @ ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Year ended 31 December 2009

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

Leasehold
land and
buildings Investment
Issued Share revaluation revaluation
capital premium reserve reserve
HELTHR RE
BEITIRAR RIDEE BFERREE AR
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
P&t TAET T TAT FAT
At 1 January 2008 R=ZZE\&E—A—H 150,480 99,724 339,471 1,104,718
Total comprehensive losses FRZEBELE
for the year - - (6,543) (731,514)
Dividend paid to a minority ~ Bff—RDEBRERE
shareholder - - - -
Transfer from retained profits 8 5{R & & - - - -
Final 2007 dividend declared B ER-_ZE+4F
RER S, - - - _
Interim 2008 dividend —EEN\FHHRS 12 - - - =
Proposed final 2008 dividend ik —ZTZT/\F
RERRE 12 - - - -
At 31 December 2008 RZZTEN\F+_A
(restated) =+—H(E3) 150,480 99,724* 332,928* 373,204*

& These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$2,916,846,000 (restated) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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REREEPXR

BE-_ZTThF+-_A=1T—RHLFE

ARAIKREER
Difference
arising from
acquisition Exchange Proposed
of minority fluctuation Reserve Retained final Minority Total
interests reserve funds profits dividend Total interests equity
KBS BHRR
EREEY HME Bk 2
=8 2HFEE Edka REEA RERE, At KRR arkn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FERL FERT TERT FERT TAT TAT TAET
Note 31(a)
MirEE31(a)
4,897 47,561 23,125 1,707,794 156,499 3,634,269 56,428 3,690,697
- 35,118 - 479,091 - (223,848) 14,472 (209,376)
- - - - - - (18,597) (18,597)
- - 13,336 (13,336) - - - _
- - - - (156,499) (156,499) - (156,499)
- - - (48,154) - (48,154) - (48,154)
- - - (138,442) 138,442 - - -
4,897* 82,679* 36,461* 1,986,953* 138,442 3,205,768 52,303 3,258,071

* SRR B ARG R MR R 2476 15 2,916,846,000 BT (EF) -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Year ended 31 December 2009

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

Leasehold
land and
buildings Investment
Issued Share revaluation revaluation
capital premium reserve reserve
HETHR RE
BRIRE RIVEE RBRFERRE EftRE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
P THER THER THERT THET
At 1 January 2009 RZETNF—A—H
As previously reported WA 25 150,480 99,724 332,928 373,204
Prior year adjustment LFERE 2.2(c) - - - -
As restated Evd 150,480 99,724 332,928 373,204
Total comprehensive income ~ FRZE KA
for the year - - 10,780 327,872
Capital repayment to a minority K82 85 &R —%4
shareholder upon liquidation — DERRREE A
of a subsidiary - - = =
Dividends paid to minority ERMPERRRE
shareholders - = = =
Transfer from retained profits ~ EHRE%F = = - -
Transfer to retained profits —FE A RE R
upon liquidation of a BRAREEN
subsidiary - - = =
Final 2008 dividend declared EEER_-EE/\F
KBRS = = = =
Interim 2009 dividend “ZENFPHRE 12 - - - -
Proposed final 2009 dividend ik —TZNE
KBRS 12 = - - -
At 31 December 2009 RZEENFT_A
=t+—H 150,480 99,724* 343,708* 701,076*

& These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$3,621,811,000 in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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REERREX
BE-_ZTThF+-_A=1T—RHLFE

EARRFELN
Difference
arising from
acquisition Exchange Proposed
of minority fluctuation Reserve Retained final Minority Total
interests reserve funds profits dividend Total interests equity
KESBRR
BEEEZ HME Bk DE
E8 BBHRE RES REBEH RERE L RRER BRs
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THER THER THER THER THER THET THET
Note 31(a)
MirEE31(a)
4,897 82,679 36,461 1,988,029 138,442 3,206,844 52,303 3,259,147
- - - (1,076) - (1,076) - (1,076)
4,897 82,679 36,461 1,986,953 138,442 3,205,768 52,303 3,258,071
- (12,203) - 577,149 - 903,598 12,004 915,602
- - = = - - (3,022) (3,022)
- - - - - - (13,363) (13,363)
= = 27,327 (27,327) - = = -
- - (4,576) 4,576 - = - -
- - - - (138,442) (138,442) - (138,442)
- - - (42,134) - (42,134) - (42,134)
- - - (156,499) 156,499 - - -
4,897* 70,476* 59,212* 2,342,718* 156,499 3,928,790 47,922 3,976,712

* WERERE AR BN R 2R G #3,621,811,0008 7T ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

Year ended 31 December 2009 BEZTNF+A=1+—HLEFE
2009 2008
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
iz TERx THET
(Restated)
(&%)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEREERE
Profit before tax BR A5t AU A1 771,233 593,745
Adjustments for: R
Finance costs BB 7 19,924 22,905
Share of profits and losses of associates FEIGHEE R Rl a A R 18 (1,222) 420
Interest income FEUWA 6 (13,974) (15,953)
Dividend income from listed investments ERE 2R EMA 6 (18,290) (29,439)
Dividend income from unlisted investments I EMRE 2 REMA 6 (413) (533)
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HEYE « #ENREER

property, plant and equipment FER (W) 6 5,159 (23,955)
Loss on disposal of an investment property HE—IRIREYXEE 6 44 =
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of investments HERAFEEERBL

at fair value through profit or loss BEFER/ (W 6 (27) 45
Net loss on disposal of derivative financial HETELMTE

instruments FEE 6 28,078 8,679
Net fair value loss/(gain) on investment Tﬁﬁ%%ZAiﬁﬁfﬁ

properties FER/ (s 6 (12,361) 6,019
Net fair value loss/(gain) on investments BATEEIER EEZ

at fair value through profit or loss BENRTEE

FEE (W) 6 (2,190) 7,476
Net fair value loss/(gain) on derivative financial ~ #T4 4@ T Az AT EBE

instruments FER (W)

— transactions not qualifying as hedges - IREHRERLIRS 6 13,850 (2,633)
Depreciation e 6 82,442 65,367
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of EHEMAEREEEY

receivables arising from securities and FEM R FORE,

futures broking, net (RERE) - FE 6 (3,584) 3,569
Reversal of impairment of accounts receivable & B30 (B ¢ o 6 - (22)
Write-down of inventories to net realizable MIEFEENER

value FE 6 6,237 18,854

874,906 655,044
Increase in inventories &2 (372,252) (435,546)
Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable AR MZ/@Z’J /(3%10) (114,395) 3,119
Decrease/(increase) in receivables arising from BAENBERPELY
securities and futures broking ﬁﬂﬁlﬁﬁ K2 mD,/(48m) (62,720) 257,439
Increase in prepayments, deposits and N ?ﬁ’i\&
other receivables HoAth FEURBR Z 2 38 10 (11,413) (19,479)
Decrease in investments at fair value through BATEEIERE
profit or loss REZRD 27 138
Decrease/(increase) in cash held on behalf REFFEEREZ
of clients w /(3 m) (62,613) 61,267
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable Eﬁﬁﬁﬁ?ﬂZim/(iﬁw\) 61,850 (45,400)
Increase/(decrease) in payables arising from BERBERLEE Y
securities and futures broking FER BR300,/ (R 92,263 (232,138)
Increase in derivative financial instruments TES QIEZi*jJIJ (28,078) (8,679)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and HFM_H@E AR ERTIEE 2
accruals #m,/ Crd) 54,200 (24,635)
Cash generated from operations KREmshRe 431,775 211,130
Interest received BUF B 13,917 15,803
Interest paid ERFLE (2,437) (893)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EBEBFGEH (96,416) (45,132)
Elsewhere taxes paid B EMbRTTIE (48,062) (50,617)
Net cash flows from operating activities REXBHRECHERE
ko 298,777 130,291
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December 2009

GERERER

HE_ZTHNFET_A=1—HILEE

Net cash flows from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Purchases of items of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of an investment
property

Increase in other assets

Deposits paid for purchase of items of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
investments

Repayment of a loan from an associate

Dividends received from associates

Dividends received from listed investments

Dividends received from unlisted investments

Net cash flows used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capital repayment to a minority shareholder
upon liquidation of a subsidiary

New bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

Interest paid

Dividends paid

Dividends paid to minority shareholders

Net cash flows used in financing activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Non-pledged time deposits with original
maturity of less than three months when
acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial
position

Bank overdrafts, unsecured

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of cash flows

2009 2008
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B = TR FET
(Restated)
(E51)
REXBARZAZRE
EEE 298,777 130,291
RETH2EERE
) = 28
BEYE  MREREER
(81,596) (104,188)
HEWH « M REHIEB
FT{S 508 10 35,829
HE— BB YL SR
4,904 =
Hih & E 252 (2,715) (23,549)
FEYE MBRRREEAZ
BEfES = (53,824)
HE T SR E TS RUA
= 2,324
BEXRBE AR ZER (128) -
BB 2 N B S 639 380
Bl ETRERE 18,290 29,439
BUWIE ETHIRER S 413 533
BREEBMACRERE
EEE (60,183) (113,028)
BETH EERE
NG e o
DY EEERA (3,022) =
HIEIRITER 3,066,957 3,132,527
BERITER (2,956,944) (3,056,296)
EENENESS (15,348) (20,355)
EHH&% (180,576) (204,653)
ERDHRERE (13,363) (18,597)
RETHMACERSE
mEFE (102,296) (167,374)
ReREREEZ
#in/ G ) B8 136,298 (150,111)
RENZEE MERES
118,478 264,541
INETERE BT E  FE (1,347) 4,048
RERZBRERERARE
253,429 118,478
REeRERABEEEDI
fﬁ@&ﬁﬁﬁﬁm 25 378,536 144,654
FREIBHBIR=EAZ
ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁm
25 463 463
REVBRRERAIZRE
&—rﬂfﬁﬂi
378,999 145,117
RITES + EIRE 28 (125,570) (26,639)
DEBeERERMIICES
rERRE 253,429 118,478
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2009

RN R

R-FBAFT=A=+-A

2009 2008
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B FET FHETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries BT B A B RS 18 1,504,456 1,484,696
CURRENT ASSETS hREBEE
Prepayments B IE 23 226 145
Tax recoverable A EIFIE 49 -
Cash and cash equivalents BeFERBE 25 1,410 1,327
Total current assets BREEE 1,685 1,472
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEEE
Other payables and accruals HAn IR R ERTIEE 3,385 3,345
Tax payable e I8 - 133
Total current liabilities BREaE 3,385 3,478
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFEE (1,700) (2,0006)
Net assets EEFE 1,502,756 1,482,690
EQUITY &
Issued capital BT A 30 150,480 150,480
Reserves i 31(b) 1,195,777 1,193,768
Proposed final dividend FOR AR AR S 12 156,499 138,442
Total equity MR 1,502,756 1,482,690
CHOW Kwen Lim BEER Vincent CHOW Wing Shing BXK
Director 52 Director 52
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g

2.1

Corporate information

Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries was involved in the
following principal activities:

o manufacture and retail of jewellery
o wholesale of precious metals
o securities, futures and commodities broking

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for investment properties, certain
buildings, derivative financial instruments and certain equity investments,
which have been measured at fair value as further explained in note 2.4
to the financial statements. These financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2009.
Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies
that may exist. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
All income, expenses and unrealized gains and losses resulting from
intercompany transactions and intercompany balances within the Group
are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders not held
by the Group in the results and net assets of the Company’s subsidiaries.
An acquisition of minority interests is accounted for using the entity
concept method whereby the difference between the consideration and
the book value of the share of the net assets acquired is recognized as an
equity transaction.

2.1

DRER
AEESEREBEERAR NN E FEM
ML ZERAR - ARRZ Ml =R
7 Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda °

FARRBAREMBRARINRE T RER
mr

s  LRERERT
BEoBE
o  Ex HEREmEL

[ ]
D]]
X,
DHTF

iy

U

RREEE

AMBREDZREEGHMASRMN
EAMBHREERN(BREMETENBR
BEA - FRAGHEAIRRE)  BEE
ERG G RAREEREAGH 2 BB
REMBE - BAREREME 2478
— SR URTEEECRENE
ATET TEERIARE TROKE
o RBETHRE S KA BRI RS - A
BRENBTIR - FRABIRAEIN
BEEOGREEREOTT -

ReER
AERMBREBEARALAKBL
BE_TTNFT_A=1— Etirz

B wmE o AR FE 2 T RSB

EEHARUERE -2 - MBARCEE
BHEKERS  AIAREEEGEZ 2
AEEA - Y- Bt AZBRIEHIER L

Z B - AEEABRSE L2 AR
A P RARER S R R R AR EA
BNEERE AR B -

DEBRERSINEBERRARERER
R KERFRERD - WIRRARER
B WEIBRRERIABRMST A
AR MREREGAKEFEECRE
BZERERARERRS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g

2.2

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the

first time for the current year's financial statements.

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27
Amendments

HKFRS 2 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 8

HKFRS 8 Amendment*

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 18 Amendment*

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1
Amendments

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption
of HKFRSs and HKAS 27 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements — Cost
of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly
Controlled Entity or Associate

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment — Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Improving
Disclosures about Financial Instruments

Operating Segments

Amendment to HKFRS 8 Operating Segments
- Disclosure of information about segment
assets (early adopted)

Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendment to Appendix to HKAS 18
Revenue — Determining whether an entity
is acting as a principal or as an agent

Borrowing Costs

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and HKAS
1 Presentation of Financial Statements
— Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation

22 ERBRRRKEZ28

AEBRAEE 2 HBEHREBRRA T
A RSERI BB RS ER -

BANBRSER BEPBREENE 1R

FIREIRR  ZBITEANRAEEY
BRI BHEEAREBRE
FIREIAR BB IRZEIS

RRBIHBHE-R
WEAA]  KEEHE
[ B2 AN
REMA

BERBREED BEMBREENE 25
F2RBITA ZEUREBERZ
XY - BBIFERIE

BANBREER BEPBREERNETR
FTREFR EAEHIR - fE
- BTAZHE

N

BEMBREER L2574
F85%

BAMBREER BEVBRELERFSHR
FOREIA*  ZEATHESH - 5
EENEERE(RT

250))

BRGEAE  HBHEZER
(EACSCHD

BEEERE  BEEIERF 18RMER

18 SRIERTA* 2Bz - ETERE
BEEZHANTREANE
7
EHePEE  ERAA
235 (B53])

BARMENE BEEHERENRZE

RRETAR  FLBITA: EHRE
BEE R BEENE 1R E
FVREBTA B HREZEZR-T

bt BT AR GRS
EYLZEE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment
HKAS 39 Amendments of Embedded Derivatives and HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Embedded Derivatives

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in
a Foreign Operation

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers
(adopted from 1 July 2009)

Improvements to HKFRSs ~ Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
(October 2008)**

* Included in Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 (as issued in May 2009).

** The Group adopted all the Improvements to HKFRSs issued in October 2008
except for the amendments to HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations — Plan to Sell the Controlling Interest in a Subsidiary,
which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009.

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of HKFRS 8,
HKAS 1 (Revised) and HK(IFRIC)-Int 13, the adoption of these new and
revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on these financial
statements and there have been no significant changes to the accounting
policies applied in these financial statements.

BN BERKE 22D ()

EE(ABRRER B5(ERMERERE
4REZEE) £8%)-REZHIR
-REFIRE  ZBIEFTLHASL
HEY & FAETARBBGTE
SPERIE39% RIFE39RZER A
CHEN TA : BARE-

AZPTETR

B (BBEBE EELH:2
LREZEY)
- ZBE 135

B (BBEHRE FHEELRZ
tREZE9)
- REE 155

B (ERBBER ) EFFREZ M
L£REZEY)
- 2EBE16%

BE(ERMBS AFFERRE
tnBZzEe) (CETAFLA-RA
-REZ18%  BES)

BERBREER HERBEMBEREER
ZEB(CER 23
NELR)**

* BREEBYBEHEER 200980152 (1
—ZTAFHARM)

** BR-ZEEAFEA-BARNEREBZ
S FEERZ BB ERELENE ST
BRI IEHEZ MBI EER B
ERB- A ERNB LA R E
o AEBERMAMER-_TTN\FTA
B 2 BB B REER 2B -

BRI XA AT RN B RS ERES
5% BEERHRRAE R(KERT) LEE
(BRMBRE2BREE)-2EF513
BN - R FRET REERT R
PG RS A BRE L BB
FE  HARBMEERZETHRT
EEREAED -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g

2.2

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

(a)

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKFRS 8, which replaces HKAS 14 Segment Reporting, specifies
how an entity should report information about its operating
segments, based on information about the components of the
entity that is available to the chief operating decision maker for
the purposes of allocating resources to the segments and assessing
their performance. The standard also requires the disclosure of
information about the products and services provided by the
segments, the geographical areas in which the Group operates,
and revenue from the Group’s major customers. The Group
concluded that the operating segments determined in accordance
with HKFRS 8 are the same as the business segments previously
identified under HKAS 14. These revised disclosures, including the
related revised comparative information, are shown in note 4 to the
financial statements.

The Group has early adopted in these financial statements the
Amendment to HKFRS 8 issued in Improvements to HKFRSs 2009
which clarifies that segment assets need only to be reported when
those assets are included in measures that are used by the chief
operating decision maker.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised) introduces changes in the presentation and
disclosures of financial statements. The revised standard separates
owner and non-owner changes in equity. The statement of changes
in equity includes only details of transactions with owners, with all
non-owner changes in equity presented as a single line. In addition,
this standard introduces the statement of comprehensive income,
with all items of income and expense recognized in profit or loss,
together with all other items of recognized income and expense
recognized directly in equity, either in one single statement, or
in two linked statements. The Group has elected to present two
statements.

2.2
(a)

B BERKEZ225 (H)

BB HMEERE KL

ERMBREENESHAREL
SR ERFE 4R Ao S - Al
RAEBENMRSERLLED
HER  YATBEEREAATA
ENERRERMD MR HER
R BRI ERBKIE - %
BITRE R BB RN SATIR M 2 &
o R R - AEBEERELR R
AEERBTERRP 2 WHZE
Fto REBEEIREE BB ]
SRAFSRBE <K EDEHEB
ERBEFE S ENF 4R
BlZ X0 BRAER o b FEERTH
B BREAREETZLRER -
RIS IEM LS -

REBE RIS TSRS RPN
BB 5 & 2E R 2009 #4915 24
NEM 2 BB BRELENF 5
2T BT RBDHMEERA
NZEEBEMNATELERRA
BRFIET BT FLAZH o

BB ETERE 1 SKEIENAH
HEC2H

BBGENE 1 FEEET) MA
BOREMMBBEM BwE 2 RE -
ZRETENRD BAARFER
AZEmEE) - REEHRERR
EBEFANETZRHHE - MAA
FRBEANEBREDHEBY2R - It
oh - RIS AR E N ER - A
BRNE-—RRIMDPERRTE
BRERERZMEKIRE - &
RFTA A E RN Em R 2 O
RBURE - AEEDREZTIM
|E °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g

2.2
(@]

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 requires customer loyalty award credits to be
accounted for as a separate component of the sales transaction
in which they are granted. The consideration received in the sales
transaction is allocated between the loyalty award credits and the
other components of the sale. The amount allocated to the loyalty
award credits is determined by reference to their fair value and is
deferred until the awards are redeemed or the liability is otherwise
extinguished.

The Group maintains a loyalty points programme in Mainland China
which allows customers to accumulate points when they purchase
products in the shops located in Mainland China. The points
accumulated can then be redeemed for certain products free-of-
charge, subject to a minimum number of points being accumulated.
HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 has been applied by the Group retrospectively and
comparative amounts have been restated. The effect of the above
change is summarized below:

Consolidated income statement for the EZ+=H=+—HIFEEZ

year ended 31 December AR E
Decrease in turnover k2 R

BREARBNZHD(BI)

Decrease in basic earnings per share

(HK cents)
Consolidated statement of financial ~ R—HA—HZ
position and equity at 1 January AREBMEER R

Increase in other payables and accruals Efth & EEF K B+ E B 2 12 i
fEE (RBREF) 2R D

Decrease in reserves (retained profits)

Consolidated statement of financial ~ R+ =-HA=+—HZ
position and equity at 31 December — A=E B A F e

Increase in other payables and accruals Eftb B BR 7% M fEETIE B 2 12N

R (RBEM) ZH D

Decrease in reserves (retained profits)

2.2
()

BN BERKE225 ()

BB (BRI EREREZES) -
RRE1IRELEHASE

REEERVBEREREZE
2)-2BEBRRE  (EAHE
RB—WNZETEFEGSBHE
BAARI BHER 5 2 BB
o WERX SRR ERAREERS
BEBEHE CH OO cED
B NEERGEBEBLERT)
R2ENFEEETLTRET -
BEERRREBOHZAGE ST
HAL -

AEE R B AR — T8
BEtEl - et EREPAENN T E
Rtz EREEREESRES
7N EARBRESDZRRT -
ZRBOHERIRBHALETE
m e ARBECEYEREE(BR
PEREREZES)-2EBF 13
RREINLBHT - LHBE
ERatmT

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERr TEL
1,165 1,076
0.2 0.2
1,076 =
1,076 =
2,241 1,076
2,241 1,076
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 1 (Revised)

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 1 Amendment

HKFRS 2 Amendments

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 9

HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 Amendment

HKAS 39 Amendment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17

First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards’

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption
of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards — Additional Exemptions for
First-time Adopters’

Amendment to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption
of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards - Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS 7 Disclosures for First-
time Adopters’

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment — Group Cash-settled Share-
based Payment Transactions’

Business Combinations'

Financial Instruments®

Related Party Disclosures®

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements'

Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial

Instruments: Presentation — Classification
of Rights Issues®

Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement - Eligible Hedged Items’

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement®

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners'

2.3
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g

283

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity

Instruments’

Amendments to HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
— Plan to Sell the Controlling Interest in a
Subsidiary’'

Amendments to HKFRS 5
included in Improvements
to HKFRSs issued in
October 2008

Leases — Determination of the Length of
Lease Term in respect of Hong Kong Land
Leases’

HK Interpretation 4
(Revised in December
2009)

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued /mprovements to HKFRSs
2009 which sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs primarily
with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording. The
amendments to HKFRS 2, HKAS 38, HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 16
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 while
the amendments to HKFRS 5, HKFRS 8, HKAS 1, HKAS 7, HKAS 17, HKAS
36 and HKAS 39 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2010 although there are separate transitional provisions for each
standard or interpretation.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of
these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application but is not yet in

a position to state whether these new and revised HKFRSs would have a
significant impact on its results of operations and financial position.

2.3
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g

2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from
its activities. The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual arrangement, whereby
the Group and other parties undertake an economic activity. The joint
venture operates as a separate entity in which the Group and the other
parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates the capital
contributions of the joint venture parties, the duration of the joint
venture and the basis on which the assets are to be realized upon its
dissolution. The profits or losses from the joint venture’s operations and
any distributions of surplus assets are shared by the venturers, either in
proportion to their respective capital contributions, or in accordance with
the terms of the joint venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(@) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control, directly or
indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not have unilateral
control, but has joint control, directly or indirectly, over the joint
venture;

(c)  an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral or joint control,
but holds, directly or indirectly, generally not less than 20% of the
joint venture's registered capital and is in a position to exercise
significant influence over the joint venture; or

(d)  an equity investment accounted for in accordance with HKAS 39,
if the Group holds, directly or indirectly, less than 20% of the joint
venture's registered capital and has neither joint control of, nor is
in a position to exercise significant influence over, the joint venture.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-controlled
entity, in which the Group has a long term interest of generally not less
than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence.

The Group's interests in associates are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group’s share of net assets under
the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses. The
Group's share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of associates is
included in the consolidated income statement and consolidated reserves,
respectively. Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interests in the associates, except where unrealized losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Adjustments are made
to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

2.4
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2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the excess of
the cost of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill previously eliminated against consolidated retained profits

Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA's Statement of Standard Accounting
Practice 30 Business Combinations in 2001, goodwill arising on
acquisition was eliminated against consolidated retained profits in the
year of acquisition. On the adoption of HKFRS 3, such goodwill remains
eliminated against consolidated retained profits and is not recognized
in the income statement when all or part of the business to which the
goodwill relates is disposed of or when a cash-generating unit to which
the goodwill relates becomes impaired.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, deferred tax
assets, financial assets, investment properties and goodwill), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognized only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the income statement in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortization) had
no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to the income statement in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
(i) controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the
Group; (i) has an interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

(b)  the party is an associate;

(c)  the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d)  the party is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group;

(e)  the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred
to in (a) or (d);

(f)  the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting power
in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (d) or (e); or

(g)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the

employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related party of
the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or valuation less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of
property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalized
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognizes such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
or valuation of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Over the shorter of the lease terms
and 2.5%
10% to 30%

Leasehold land and buildings

Plant and machinery
Leasehold improvements,
furniture, fixtures and
equipment
Motor vehicles

10% to 33%
30%
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2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost or valuation of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially
recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognized in the income statement in the year the
asset is derecognized is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

The transitional provisions set out in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16
Property, Plant and Equipment have been adopted for property, plant and
equipment stated at valuation. As a result, those assets stated at revalued
amounts based on revaluations which were reflected in the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 1993 have not been revalued
by class at the end of the reporting period. On disposal of a revalued
asset, the relevant portion of the leasehold land and buildings revaluation
reserve realized in respect of the previous valuations is transferred to
retained profits as a movement in reserves.

For a transfer from owner-occupied properties to investment properties,
the related revaluation surplus is retained in the leasehold land and
buildings revaluation reserve and remains there until the subsequent
disposal or retirement of the property, whereby that time the revaluation
surplus is transferred to retained profits.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in leasehold land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property
which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property)
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the income statement in the year in which they
arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognized in the income statement in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied properties,
the deemed cost of property for subsequent accounting is its fair value at
the date of change in use.
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2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.

The Group's intangible assets, representing eligibility rights to trade
on or through The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited (the “Futures
Exchange”), have indefinite useful lives and are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such
intangible assets are not amortized. The useful life of an intangible
asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change
in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from the derecognition of an intangible asset
are measured as the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset and are recognized in the income
statement when the asset is derecognized.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and
available-for-sale financial investments, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
When financial assets are recognized initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or
loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

(a)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. This category includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKAS 39.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with changes in fair value recognized in the income statement.
These net fair value changes do not include any dividends on these
financial assets, which are recognized in accordance with the policy
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (held for trading) to assess whether the intent to
sell them in the near term is still appropriate. When the Group
is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets
and management’s intent to sell them in the foreseeable future
significantly changes, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets in rare circumstances. The reclassification from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss to loans and
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets or held-to-maturity
investments depends on the nature of the assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortization is included in interest income
in the income statement. The loss arising from impairment is
recognized in the income statement.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

()

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity securities. Equity investments
classified as available for sale are those which are neither classified
as held for trading nor designated at fair value through profit or
loss. After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealized gains or
losses recognized as other comprehensive income in the investment
revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognized, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss is recognized in the income
statement, or until the investment is determined to be impaired, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognized in the income
statement and removed from the investment revaluation reserve.
Interest and dividends earned are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognized in the income
statement as other income in accordance with the policies set out
for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the
probabilities of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating the fair value, such
securities are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial investments
whether the ability and intention to sell them in the near term
are still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s intent
to do so significantly changes in the foreseeable future, the Group
may elect to reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances.
Reclassification to loans and receivables is permitted when the
financial assets meet the definition of loans and receivables and
the Group has the intent and ability to hold these assets for the
foreseeable future or to maturity. The reclassification to the held-
to-maturity category is permitted only when the entity has the
ability and intent to hold until the maturity date of the financial
asset.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-sale
category, any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognized in equity is amortized to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective interest rate.
Any difference between the new amortized cost and the expected
cash flows is also amortized over the remaining life of the asset
using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to the income statement.
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2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part
of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and

J either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent
of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the
Group also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is
any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to
be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment
may include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganization and observable data indicating that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Group first assesses
individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group
of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,
recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g

2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortized cost (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or through the
use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognized
in the income statement. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the
Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss
increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment
was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to the income statement.

Financial assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred
on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value because
its fair value cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on
these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that an
investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale investment is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortization) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognized in the income statement, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognized in the income statement.

2.4

TESHBERE(H)
HREEREE)
BEHAIAREE (F)
WEEBRERRRHRRERRE - RIRE
BREZEERAEAGGARADAE
(TERHAREEZRREEBR)REZ
EREE o ARt ARBASRE CRENE
REEFX(BIRERR G E 2 EEA
L)FR - WERZMERZFENE - R

AEEMREBRZTIREAENELN

PAEREETEEAL L BBRAE
EIETAL + AR ER ERERER -
Fle A BB 2 REEEHE - A
SRR BB SRR P TR A R & R
BRI  HAKKEZREBE -
A A ERRE S RN EEATAEE
B W B 0 L £ A A R B A
s -

WE R B b EHRUE RS 18 £ 58 f X FERR R
EAREE 2 ETRIZ MR D - BB B
BRGERE MRS EAER 2 RERS
1B o MMEHERNARRKE - ZRKEE
AR

BHEANRZHBEEE
ARFEEARERSEFEMN MO TERE
AR BHRERD TAMETBEERET
HERRERSR AZERSERABER
HEREERMSERUMBEE @R
KRR EHAARRAEREREMEZE
o WHEEEZRE/BBTA D -

R ENFRE
RAHHERBREME - AREREE
BERRFEREFHERBERBET R
H—ARERRRE

WA EEE MR RE - BIEKA
REMASREHE) RENATFEEZE
# o BIMRAERERRER 2 EARE
BRzeHE  REMEEKEBE - TR

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEEEBEBEBEAERLQA

56/

ANNUAL REPORT 2009
2009 & %R



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g

2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, objective
evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment below its cost. The determination of what
is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement. “Significant” is
evaluated against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged”
against the period in which the fair value has been below its original cost.
Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in
the income statement — is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognized in the income statement. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed through the
income statement. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognized directly in other comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or loans and borrowings,
as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial
liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in the case
of loans and borrowings, less directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as
follows:

(@)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss includes
financial liabilities held for trading.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. This category
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the
Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognized in the income statement. The net
fair value gain or loss recognized in the income statement does not
include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

(b)  Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognized in the income statement when the liabilities are
derecognized as well as through the effective interest rate method
amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortization is included in finance costs in the income statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g

2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

(c)  Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognized initially as
a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period; and (ii) the amount initially recognized less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortization.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognized
in the income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if, and only if, there is
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets
is determined by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price
quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for short positions),
without any deduction for transaction costs. For financial instruments
where there is no active market, the fair value is determined using
appropriate valuation techniques. Such techniques include using recent
arm’s length market transactions; and reference to the current market
value of another instrument which is substantially the same.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g

2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency
contracts and bullion contracts to hedge its foreign currency risk and
bullion price risk, respectively. Such derivative financial instruments are
initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when
the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are
taken directly to the income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost
is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in the case of work in
progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of production overheads. Net realizable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred
to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided
that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognized for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the income statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g

2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

J where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are
only recognized to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilized.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognized to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on
the following bases:

(@)  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

from the rendering of services, in the period in which such services
are provided;

commissions and brokerage income on dealings in securities and
futures contracts, on the transaction dates when the relevant
contract notes are executed;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset;

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive payment
has been established; and

income from the sale of investments at fair value through profit or
loss and available-for-sale investments, on the transaction dates
when the relevant contract notes are executed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR &M

2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their
employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under certain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken at the end of the
reporting period is permitted to be carried forward and utilized by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual is made at the end
of the reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid leave
earned during the year by the employees and carried forward.

Pension schemes and other retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ relevant income and are
charged to the income statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China and Taiwan are required to participate in central pension
schemes operated by the respective local municipal governments. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute 6% to 22% of their payroll costs to
the central pension schemes. The contributions are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
respective central pension schemes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds, and they are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets
remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases. Where the
Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the income statement on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases are charged to the income statement on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at
cost and subsequently recognized on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included
in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant
and equipment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR &M

2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the Directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the statement
of financial position, until they have been approved by the shareholders
in a general meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the
shareholders and declared, they are recognized as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the
Company’s memorandum of association and bye-laws grant the Directors
the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognized immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
All differences are taken to the income statement. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and an associate
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into the presentation currency of the Company at the exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period and their income statements are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognized in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.

2.4
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR &M

Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognized in the financial statements:

(a)  Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor
The Group has entered into property leases on its investment
property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that it
retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

(b)  Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers
whether a property generates cash flows largely independently
of the other assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise
a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
and another portion that is held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these
portions could be sold separately, the Group accounts for the
portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an
individual property basis to determine whether ancillary services
are so significant that a property does not qualify as an investment
property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a)  Fair value of unlisted equity investment
The unlisted equity investment has been valued by using valuation
techniques including estimated discounted cash flows and based
on information from a variety of sources, including the fair value
of the underlying asset of the investment. The fair value of the
unlisted equity investment stated at fair value as at 31 December
2009 was HK$13,998,000 (2008: HK$12,768,000) (note 20).
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MR &M

&

Significant accounting judgements and estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(b)

(@

(d)

(e)

(f)

Estimation of impairment of receivables

The Group determines the impairment of accounts receivable,
receivables arising from securities and futures broking and other
receivables based on objective evidence of impairment and
historical loss experience of the respective individual balances of
the counterparties. If the financial condition of its debtors was
to deteriorate so that the actual impairment loss might be higher
than expected, the Group would be required to revise the basis of
making the allowance and its future results would be affected.

Estimation of realizability of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. Further details are contained in note 29 to the financial
statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period.
Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for impairment annually
and at other times when such an indicator exists. Other non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use. The calculation of the
fair value less costs to sell is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm'’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the statement of financial
position at their fair value. The fair value was based on a valuation
on these properties conducted by an independent firm of
professionally qualified valuers using property valuation techniques
which involve making assumptions on certain market conditions.
Favorable or unfavorable changes to these assumptions would
result in changes in the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties and the corresponding adjustments to the gain or loss
recognized in the income statement.

Net realizable value of inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimation costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal. These estimates are based on the current market
condition and the historical experience in selling goods of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in
market conditions. The Group will reassess the estimation at the
end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B SR M EE

4.  Operating segment information 4. REIHER

For management purposes, the Group is organized into business units AEBERBERIRBE D EHKEM - B

based on their products and services and has four reportable operating BT ER] 23HREEHE

segments as follows:

(@)  the manufacture and retail of jewellery segment produces jewellery @) HERENTEDBAELAEERZ
products for the Group's retail business and operates retail stores TEXBEEREEMREIENSE
mainly in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China; B ORMRFPEAMEETEL

(b)  the wholesale of precious metals segment trades precious metals to (b)y EBELBHMEHIFTESBZFEES
wholesale customers; t8

(c)  the securities and futures broking segment provides brokering and (0 BHEEBELLHEIRMES LB
dealing services for securities and futures; and “"ZZ‘“%&EEHWR K

(d)  the other businesses segment comprises, principally, the investment d) HaEBLBPEZALEWMEUR
in properties for their rental income and capital appreciation HHESWARERNEBEE ] - AR
potential and other jewellery related businesses. HAREAREET -

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments EEEBORIEELED BT ES - MEH

separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation BERD @E&EEEHEZRﬁ DEBRILT

and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on & 2 “*Emﬂ?&ﬁ?ﬁﬁ BAs AR R

reportable segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted profit before ﬁﬁﬁiﬁnﬂz H o MBBRBATRN 2 51

tax. The adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently with the U5 R AR BRBARFIS B B A

Group's profit before tax except that certain dividend income and share —B - HETRE Hﬁlkﬁfgﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁjiﬁ

of profit and losses of associates are excluded from such measurement. FREBETREEEAEE

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the NEHE REERBHEE TE=BH &

selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing BIEARBEATE -

market prices.

Securities
Manufacture Wholesale and
and retail  of precious futures Other
of jewellery metals broking  businesses Total
BRERE BHER R
REE BLEMH HERL Hit 2% st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THERT THET THET THET
Year ended BE-ZETNF
31 December 2009 +=A=+—-Hi
FE
Segment revenue g6
Sales to external HETINRES
customers 5,922,590 3,409,828 84,920 46,098 9,463,436
Intersegment sales WP sHE 31,671 417,683 = 3,087 452,441
5,954,261 3,827,511 84,920 49,185 9,915,877
Reconciliation: SHET
Elimination of “ﬁ%ﬂwiﬁ&
intersegment sales (452,441)
9,463,436

Segment results PEEE 662,344 28,411 53,705 7,107 751,567

Reconciliation: ,ﬂEﬁ

Dividend income SA 18,444

Share of profits of Fgfﬁ B AR

associates 1,222

Profit before tax PR AT A 771,233
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B SR M EE

4.  Operating segment information (continued) 4. REIBERE)
Securities
Manufacture Wholesale and
and retail  of precious futures Other
of jewellery metals broking businesses Total
kZE ESE#HE HERL Hin % Fohy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FTERT FERx FEx FET FERT
Year ended BEZE-ZZThF
31 December 2009 +=B=+—-H1t
FE
Other segment Hih o HEN
information
Interest income FEBKA (711) (152) (13,105) (6) (13,974)
Dividend income IR BUA - - (259) - (259)
Net fair value gain on BEME L NFEE
investment properties F - - - (12,361) (12,361)
Net fair value gain on BEAFEEIEAE
investments at fair value &N R TLEBE
through profit or loss FEUES — — (2,190) — (2,190)
Reversal of impairment of 4R HAER LA EE Y
receivables arising from  JEUKBEFR
securities and futures ERE FE
broking, net - - (3,584) = (3,584)
Depreciation e 80,097 9 2,091 245 82,442
Write-down of inventories i #5717 & & Al &35
to net realizable value FE 6,163 74 - = 6,237
Net fair value loss on TESBMTIAYZ
derivative financial NEEEFEE
instruments 13,601 249 - - 13,850
Net loss on disposal of HEMESRTA
derivative financial FEE
instruments 27,013 1,065 - - 28,078
Net loss on disposal of HEME  #E K
items of property, plant ~ REERZFEE
and equipment 5,159 - - - 5,159
Loss on disposal of an HE—IEIREME
investment property Eia = = = 44 44
Finance costs B E R 17,445 3 2,456 20 19,924
Capital expenditure BRI 134,714 - 706 - 135,420
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g

4,

Operating segment information (continued)

Year ended
31 December 2008

Segment revenue

Sales to external
customers

Intersegment sales

Reconciliation:
Elimination of
intersegment sales

Segment results
Reconciliation:
Dividend income
Share of losses of
associates

Profit before tax

4., REFIER(E)
Securities
Manufacture Wholesale and
and retail of precious futures Other
of jewellery metals broking businesses Total
KBRS EFHR
RTE HEoBHE HE&4L HAh 7% et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THIT FHIT FAT FHT THIT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&51) (&31)
HEZZTN\F
+=A=+—-RlLt
FE
i 16
HETINREP
5,358,053 4,356,706 70,401 95,269 9,880,429
REPEHE 426,660 477,028 - 2,564 906,252
5,784,713 4,833,734 70,401 97,833 10,786,681
4
HENHEE
(906,252)
9,880,429
DEBELE 523,800 13,917 30,963 (4,224) 564,456
A -
R EIA 29,709
e B & AR E B
(420)
BREE AR A 593,745
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B SR M EE

4.  Operating segment information (continued) 4. REITBERE)
Securities
Manufacture Wholesale and
and retail of precious futures Other
of jewellery metals broking businesses Total
HRERE BHER
REE B BHE Hﬁf%& Hith %% FCE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEIT FHET FHT FHIT FHT
Year ended HEZZT\&F
31 December 2008 +-B=+—Hit
FE
Other segment HithHEN
information
Interest income YA (1,196) (523) (13,648) (586) (15,953)
Dividend income BB A - - (263) = (263)
Net fair value gain on fTEEMIAZ
derivative financial NEEEF RS
instruments (2,164) (469) - - (2,633)
Net (gain)/loss on disposal HEE a2 N
of items of property, REEEF
plant and equipment (W) /Eia (23,959) - 4 - (23,955)

Impairment of receivables &% & S &4
arising from securities EAEZ EHRERR

and futures broking, net  JE{E - HE - - 3,569 - 3,569
Depreciation e 64,047 M 1,464 245 65,867
Write-down of inventories M7 &&= &

to net realizable value FE 18,816 38 = = 18,854
Net loss on disposal of HEMESMTE

derivative financial FEE

instruments 2,433 6,246 - - 8,679
Net fair value loss on RATFEBIIEAE

investments at fair value BN QAFEE

through profit or loss FEE - - 7,476 - 7,476
Net fair value loss on BEWME L NFEE

investment properties HERE - - - 6,019 6,019
Finance costs W& 21,633 9 1,097 166 22,905
Capital expenditure BARMER 100,053 - 4,135 = 104,188
(a) Geographical information (a) HEEH

Revenue from external customers HEFIHKEFZ Mz
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FET
(Restated)
(&%)
Hong Kong and Macau BB KRN 7,501,872 8,298,243
Mainland China HEA 1,875,560 1,504,120
Elsewhere Hibih 86,004 78,066
9,463,436 9,880,429

The revenue information above is based on the location of the Ltz AR IR R PR = 2
customers.
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4,

Operating segment information (continued)

(a) Geographical information (continued)

Non-current assets

Hong Kong and Macau
Mainland China
Elsewhere

The non-current asset information above is based on the location
of assets and excludes available-for-sale investments and deferred

tax assets.

Fo MR
B A
Hito [

(b) Information about major customers

The turnover from the Group's largest customer amounted to less
than 10% of the Group's total turnover for the current and prior

year.

Turnover

Turnover represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances
trade discounts and value-added tax; commission on
securities, futures and commodities broking and rental income earned

for returns,

during the year.

Revenue from the following activities has been included in turnover:

Sale of goods

Commission on securities, futures and

commaodities broking
Gross rental income

EmiHE

jf"f%‘ HHE &Fﬁuu
RGN

BHESBA

\

W

»

KEIBERN(R)
(a) HEEH(ER)
HRGEE

2009 2008

HK$’000 HK$°000

TR TAT

500,090 495,994

165,766 147,467

2,359 3,959

668,215 647,420

LisERBEEB R R EEME
Wwedn  WAERAIHEERE
RERHIREE °

(b) EREEEFZEH

RAFERAEEEREAKER
AREFZEXRBIOEASEBERR
PR10% °

BEE

EERETNENIRERR - X ZMMEE

ERRELEMCBERFE &%  HE

EREmE LA A RES A -

EEEBRUATER 2 -

Group

rEE
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THT
(Restated)
(&31)
9,367,235 9,797,851
86,395 72,798
9,806 9,780
9,463,436 9,880,429

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEEEBEBEBEAERLQA

70

ANNUAL REPORT 2009
2009 & %R



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B SR M EE

6.  Profit before tax 6. BRBIADEF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): AEBZBRBADEFC R, GTA)
2009 2008
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bz TEr FET
Cost of inventories sold HERA 7,576,468 8,319,364
Write-down of inventories to net MEFERE
realizable value* AR E 6,237 18,854
Depreciation e 14 82,442 65,867
Minimum lease payments under HELHRIETF
operating leases for leasehold land e RARE
and buildings HERNK 290,002 220,012
Auditors’ remuneration ZEREN B & 2,589 2,645
Employee benefit expense** (excluding [EERAMET** (TREEZHE
Directors’ remuneration (note 8)): (Pft5E8) )
Wages and salaries TERFS 459,758 417,001
Pension scheme contributions RIRE IR 38,806 28,251
Less: Forfeited contributions W BIRUER (93) (26)
Net pension scheme contributions RINE B TFE 38,713 28,225
498,471 445,226
Reversal of impairment of accounts R LS B 5 L 1 8 [
receivable 22 - (22)
Rental income on investment properties &M% 2 A& WA (9,806) (9,780)
Less: Direct operating expenses AR S 2 B
arising on rental-earning BELERX
investment properties 1,566 1,377
Net rental income on investment BEME BB FER
properties (8,240) (8,403)
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of items of — HIEY) % #22 KR HEHEE
property, plant and equipment*** SRR (Ras) £x* 5,159 (23,955)
Loss on disposal of an investment HE—RREMEESE
property 44 =
Net loss on disposal of derivative HETESRT ARER"
financial instruments” 28,078 8,679
Net fair value loss/(gain) on derivative ~ #T44£ BT A7 AFEE
financial instruments BB ()
— transactions not qualifying as - F AR EEs RS
hedges® 13,850 (2,633)
Interest income FS WA (13,974) (15,953)
Dividend income from listed investments Em%E Z ik B4R A (18,290) (29,439)
Dividend income from unlisted FEMKREZREBA
investments (413) (533)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of FHMHERKLEEY
receivables arising from securities and ~ FEMEEZURE
futures broking, net CRUERR) - FE 22 (3,584) 3,569
Foreign exchange differences, net B ERE  FE (15,661) (9,366)
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of HERRAFEBEIERE
investments at fair value through BEFEER/ (W)
profit or loss (27) 45
Net fair value loss/(gain) on investment & &% 7 AT(EE
properties’ FEE/ ()" 15 (12,361) 6,019
Net fair value loss/(gain) on investments ZAF(EEG]E&EEZIKERN
at fair value through profit or loss AFEEFEE ()" (2,190) 7,476
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6.
*
* %
Kok
A
#

7.

Profit before tax (continued)

This balance is included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated
income statement.

The employee benefit expense included an amount of HK$1,830,000
(2008: HK$2,000,000) paid to a Director’'s spouse as employee
remuneration.

In the prior year, the net loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, plant
and equipment included a gain on disposal of a leasehold land and building
of HK$26,248,000, which is included in “Other gains, net” on the face of
the consolidated income statement.

The net loss on disposal of derivative financial instruments included a
net loss on bullion contracts of HK$30,164,000 (2008: HK$12,511,000),
which is included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated income
statement.

These balances are included in “Other gains, net” on the face of the
consolidated income statement.

Finance costs

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

Interest on bank loans and overdrafts

ARIFRRHERL

wholly repayable within five years ROIERREZFE
Interest on other loans wholly repayable ZBRRAERNTHEE 2
within five years H A B S

*

* %

BRBLATER R (B

)
IR B RS A BaMR LI HEKAE]
o

EERIRAZBEINT —RESERRE
EREEM S 2 £ % 1,830,000/ T
(ZZZ )\ : 2,000,000/87T) °

REFE  HEWE  HEKIHEEE
FEE/ (kRN BEHERELRE
F 226,248,000 T s WEER
SERABRE FTH MU FE]
q:: o

HEMESRTAFEEEESES
#)2.30,164,000 BT FEE(ZZTN
F:12,511,00087T) WEEBEEE
IREBRE FIHER A -

MBER

BHEERZOMMT :

Group

ArEE
2009
HK$000
TET

2008
HK$'000
TAT

19,676 22,736

248 169

19,924

22,905
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g

8. Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and Section 161 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

Fees ik
Other emoluments: Hpe :
Salaries and allowances e o2
Discretionary bonuses paid and BN RENTIE
payable TE4L
Pension scheme contributions RASE IR

8. EEME

REBFEMERXZMAERDBZEFLHH
BICTEMARAN ) RERDFEHIZE 161 16
ZHRE  AFEEZEEMEWRENT

2009
HK$’000
TR

2,350

5,862

1,745
163

7,770

10,120

2008
HK$°000
TAT

2,350

5,859

2,285
163

8,307

10,657
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g

8.

2009

Executive Directors:

Dr. CHOW Kwen Lim

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling

Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam

Dr. CHAN Bing Fun*

Mr. LEE Ka Lun*

Mr. LO King Man*

Directors’ remuneration (continued)

An analysis of the remuneration paid and payable to Directors during the
year is as follows:

8. EEML(E)
FRNENKERTEEZME AT :
Discretionary
Salaries bonuses Pension
and paid and scheme
Fees allowances payable contributions Total
ENREM Bike
e HeRER BIBTEAL ST &t
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FET TExT FET TExT
—EENE
BITES
AEREL 300 1,531 107 - 1,938
JEIKBK 5t 4 200 2,006 835 100 3,141
JEIBipK B8 A 230 282 95 14 621
Bn k% 200 1,701 708 49 2,658
930 5,520 1,745 163 8,358
FHTES !
BESEE 200 342 = - 542
TRBRE 230 - - - 230
MR AE 230 - - - 230
PR IR E 58 A * 230 - - - 230
TR 300 - - - 300
BRI E 230 - - - 230
1,420 342 - - 1,762
2,350 5,862 1,745 163 10,120

Independent Non-executive Directors

* BUFNTEER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g

8.

Directors’ remuneration (continued)

2008 —ZT)N\F
Executive Directors: HITES:
Dr. CHOW Kwen Lim AEREL
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing KA E
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing [ERSPK B
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing BB E
Non-executive Directors: FHTES !
Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling BE<%E
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel TRELE
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam &ML E
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun* PRIMBNEE 4 *
Mr. LEE Ka Lun* FRB A
Mr. LO King Man* BRI
* Independent Non-executive Directors

8. EZEM&(&)
Discretionary

Salaries bonuses Pension

and paid and scheme
Fees allowances payable  contributions Total

[EARPSYAN) Bike
0Ee  FHEKERM BB IEAT BEE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FET TET TET
300 1,529 473 - 2,302
200 2,005 924 100 3,229
230 282 104 14 630
200 1,701 784 49 2,734
930 5,517 2,285 163 8,895
200 342 - - 542
230 - - - 230
230 — - — 230
230 = = = 230
300 - - - 300
230 - - - 230
1,420 342 - - 1,762
2,350 5,859 2,285 163 10,657

There were no other emoluments payable to the Independent Non-
executive Directors during the year (2008: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a Director waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration during the year (2008: Nil).

* BUFNTEE

FRLEE BN TBIINTES
(ZFENE )

FRNEFTRITLEMRERREREE
AMEHLZH(ZEENF : F) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g

10.

Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included
two (2008: three) Directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in
note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining three (2008:
two) non-Director, highest paid employees for the year are as follows:

Salaries and allowances e kR
Discretionary bonuses paid and payable B2 1 K & i By 5 7E4L
Pension scheme contributions RINEFT B

The remuneration of the three (2008: two) non-Director, highest paid
employees fell within the following bands:

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000

2,500,001 7T % 3,000,000 87T
3,000,001 87T E 3,500,000 87T
3,500,001 87T % 4,000,000 87T

Income tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2008:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

Current — Hong Kong AH - BB
Charge for the year FAKIE
Overprovision in prior years BAFERERE

Current - Elsewhere
Deferred (Note 29)

AH - Hivi[m
I (FF7E29)

Total tax charge for the year FRTIALERE

10.

LEREHMES
AEEAKBERERRHHERRER
BCEENF: =R)E%5 - A
SEMEN LTS - AFEEB=F
(ZZ2ZN\F : BB RSFMIFESESR
MM ERINT

2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$°000
TRT TAT
5,479 3,450
3,824 2,765
274 172
9,577 6,387

SH(-TENE MR BEFHLES
EEMSATINT -

Number of employees

BEAR

2009 2008
2 1
- 1
1 =
3 2

i85
EBHEHDEENNEBEL 2 i
FESRBER FILABLE 16.5% (—EEN\F -
16.5%) B - £ 0 B B0 R A 2 B
B AR BN S SR AR 2 B
3 -

Group

r5E
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
68,107 64,301
(627) (79)
87,065 43,505
28,289 4,309
182,834 112,036

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g

10. Income tax (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to profit before tax at the
statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the Company and the majority
of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax charge at the effective tax rate
is as follows:

FRTLAT R F

Profit before tax

REBEERE16.5% (ZTT)\F :
16.5% )5 EHIB

Tax charge at the Hong Kong statutory
tax rate of 16.5% (2008: 16.5%)

Difference in tax rates applied for ERAREEEDHK
specific provinces or enacted by local iR~
authorities PEER

Effect on opening deferred tax of T R D F AR
decrease in rates M FE

Adjustments in respect of current tax of FLIAREE 2 HIAE
previous years KRR

Profits and losses attributable to JERHE &R Al E A B 1R
associates

Estimated income not subject to tax

Estimated expenses not deductible for
tax

Effect of withholding tax at 10% (2008: A& E N E AR £LME
5% or 10%) on the distributable K2 B AR 2 DK T 10%
profits of the Group's subsidiaries (ZZTN\F 1 5% 10%):tE
established in the People’s Republic of ~ JE1RH 7 &
China

Tax losses utilized from previous periods {8 F A7+ 8RS~ Bl 18 512

Estimated tax losses not recognized EEN VAR ]

T AT N
AR fht i

Tax charge at the Group's effective rate IR AEBMEEH K8 2 HiE

The Group's share of tax charge attributable to associates amounting to
HK$245,000 (2008: tax credit of HK$108,000) is included in “Share of
profits and losses of associates” on the face of the consolidated income
statement.

For companies operating in Mainland China, corporate taxes have been
calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year at rates
ranging from 12.5% to 25% (2008: ranging from 12.5% to 25%).

10.

Frig®i (&)

TREEBARRRE RIS KB DB M
P AERE IR 2 A E B R At B E A
RERTRADER 2 BIR - AR E BB R
B2 BBEETHE -

Group
PN |
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT T
(Restated)
(&271)
771,233 593,745
127,253 97,968
18,808 9,780
- (313)
(627) (79)
(202) 69
(8,842) (15,138)
14,578 10,361
31,152 6,781
= (20)
714 2,627
182,834 112,036

7K £ [ 8 {5 B & A A) B B /5 245,000 7
T(ZZEENE : HIEREE A 108,000
) BEEELGEBHEE I EEBRED
Bl R BB A o

BRRPEARMEBEZ AEIME %
R AN A o Z
?125%i25%(:i§§)\¢: o+
12.5% &= 25%) Z T R+HE o

b
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g

1.

12.

3"

Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company

The consolidated profit attributable to shareholders of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2009 includes a profit of HK$200,642,000
(2008: HK$105,717,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (note 31(b)).

Dividends

HE - IR 7.0 751
(ZZTNE : 8.0/81)

Interim — HK7.0 cents
(2008: HK8.0 cents)
per ordinary share

Proposed final - HK26.0 cents KRR B -5 @R 260751l
(2008: HK23.0 cents) (ZZTNEF :23.05HL)
per ordinary share

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the
Company'’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Earnings per share attributable to shareholders of the Company

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit for the
year attributable to shareholders of the Company of HK$574,090,000
(2008: HK$469,715,000 (restated)), and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 601,920,000 (2008: 601,920,000) ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share amounts
presented for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 in respect of
a dilution as the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during those years.

11.

12.

13.

AR ERREGET

HE-_ZZAE+-_A=T—HILEFE -
ARERREGEE R BEARR M
|4 N 2 — T8 & 7 200,642,000 7% 7T

(ZZZ )\ : 105,717,000 70 ) (i &%
31(b)) ©
KRE
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
42,134 48,154
156,499 138,442
198,633 186,596
VR 2 FE R BB B AR R AR A ED

BRI ZBRRBFERGHA -

ARERREGEZRERN

BREABFDEFARA ﬂﬂx?ﬂ‘ﬁﬁ
i 574,090,000 T(ZZE T N\ F:
469,715,000/8 (&%) R FANE 17
hn#EF 5 %5 601,920, oooﬁx(_7 ZN
£ : 601,920,000 %) 3@ A5

HRBE_ZTNFR_TT/\F+_H
=t— Hﬁirzﬁﬁliﬁﬁ%ﬁ}%*ﬁ%%
RENTBR  HEFHEMEFEZS
BREARAELARE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g

14. Property, plant and equipment

Group
r5E

As at 31 December 2009 A=ZEh &

T=A=t-

At 31 December 2008 and R=ZEN\E

1 January 2009: +=—A=+—
—ZETNEF
—A—A8:
Cost or valuation XA R E
Accumulated ZEE
depreciation
Net carrying amount REFE
At 1 January 2009, —TThE
net of accumulated —H—A"
depreciation kR RETHE
Surplus on revaluation*  EffIE(E *
Additions NE
Transfer to investment BRTREME
properties (note 15)* (BEzE15) *
Disposals HE
Depreciation provided FAMERE
during the year
Exchange realignment [& 5 A
At 31 December 2009, R=-ZTTHE
net of accumulated +-F=1—
depreciation kR REHE
At 31 December 2009: —TThE
-!—_H,-?—
Cost or valuation B A Sk{fE
Accumulated 2FE
depreciation
Net carrying amount REFE

H &%

B

H:

14. ¥ BBRRE

Certain leasehold land and buildings of the Group were revalued

on 31 July 2009, the date of change in use of those leasehold
land and buildings as investment properties, by management at
an aggregate open market value of HK$25,830,000 (note 15). A
revaluation surplus of HK$15,969,000, resulting from the above
revaluation, was credited to the leasehold land and buildings

revaluation reserve during the year ended 31 December 20009.

Leasehold
improvements,
Leasehold furniture,
land and Plant and fixtures and Motor
buildings machinery equipment vehicles Total
HEY*
AR BE %5 BA \ .
RET e RERRE RE a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THEx THET TR
291,898 19,644 225,786 5,593 542,921
(57,380) (7,007) (86,274) (2,322) (152,983)
234,518 12,637 139,512 3,271 389,938
234,518 12,637 139,512 3,271 389,938
15,969 - - - 15,969
53,824 3,837 77,325 434 135,420
(25,830) - - - (25,830)
- (252) (4,761) (156) (5,169)
(10,593) (4,842) (65,908) (1,099) (82,442)
(58) 2 54 4 2
267,830 11,382 146,222 2,454 427,888
331,785 22,877 290,392 5,174 650,228
(63,955) (11,495) (144,170) (2,720) (222,340)
267,830 11,382 146,222 2,454 427,888
*  AEBETHELIMERBFER
ZEENFLA=+—H %F
HETHREFARERARKRE
MEEH AEBERARTS
#8 {8 & {4 /325,830,00078 7T (i
F15) e EERES 2 BMEE
15969000/ B8 LERBEZ =TT NLF
TZA=+—BIEFEARGFAHE
T RBFEMEREE o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

14. W% BERREGE)

Group
rEE
Leasehold
improvements,
Leasehold furniture,
land and Plant and fixtures and Motor
buildings machinery equipment vehicles Total
HEME
HE LT B EE s
REF B REREE "B B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T FHET FHT THET
As at 31 December 2008 R-TZT)\4F
+-—RA=+—H
At 1 January 2008: “TTN\EF
—H—H:
Cost or valuation A E 299,656 14,469 152,550 5,869 472,544
Accumulated FtE
depreciation (48,329) (5,894) (58,924) (2,494) (115,641)
Net carrying amount FHE 251,327 8,575 93,626 3,375 356,903
At 1 January 2008, RZTTNF
net of accumulated —A—HB"
depreciation MR REHE 251,327 8,575 93,626 3,375 356,903
Additions NE - 7,926 95,314 948 104,188
Transfer from investment E&E BT EYE
properties (note 15) (B 15) 3,334 = = = 3,334
Disposals e (9,511) (157) (2,176) (30) (11,874)
Depreciation provided FRITERE
during the year (10,794) (3,888) (50,016) (1,169) (65,867)
Exchange realignment S 162 181 2,764 147 3,254
At 31 December 2008, RZZENEF
net of accumulated +7H7-|— B
depreciation MR ZEME 234,518 12,637 139,512 3,271 389,938
At 31 December 2008:  R=-ZE\F
+,ﬂ_+ H:
Cost or valuation A E 291,898 19,644 225,786 5,593 542,921
Accumulated ZEHE
depreciation (57,380) (7,007) (86,274) (2,322) (152,983)
Net carrying amount EHE 234,518 12,637 139,512 3,271 389,938

Certain of the Group’s leasehold land and buildings were revalued on
31 December 1993 by Knight Frank & Kan, independent professionally
qualified valuers. The leasehold land and buildings were revalued on an
open market, existing use basis. Since 1995, no further revaluations of the
Group's leasehold land and buildings have been carried out, as the Group
has relied upon the exemption, provided under the transitional provisions
of HKAS 16, from the requirement to carry out future revaluations of its
property, plant and equipment which were stated at valuation at that
time.

AEBETHELHREBTR-AN=F
T A=+ REBYEEAERAER
BREAABTER  ZSFHELMRET
BERBAREARMERESRE - A&
EE-NANRFRATEETEAE 16
BB T 2 MR  BAHNER
HEFIRZME M MREETRRE
g'ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁim&§$ﬁﬁé
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g

14.

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

14.

Had these leasehold land and buildings been carried at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, their carrying amount
would have been approximately HK$27,102,000 (2008: HK$38,651,000).

The Group's leasehold land and buildings included above are held under

the following lease terms:

As at 31 December 2009

At cost:
Long term leases
Medium term leases

At 1993 valuation:
Long term leases
Medium term leases

As at 31 December 2008

At cost:
Long term leases
Medium term leases

At 1993 valuation:
Long term leases
Medium term leases

R-ZZEZEAF+=-A=+—H

A
KM
RERY

B—NN=Fh(E
RHPHED
RERY

RZBZN\F+-_HA=+—H

KA
RHHED
RERD

B—NN=Fh(E
RHHED
RERY

Hong Kong
£
HK$°000
FTER

666
11,786
12,452
78,757

179,736
258,493

270,945

Hong Kong
)
HK$'000
THT

666
25,666
26,332
78,757

179,736
258,493

284,825

At 31 December 2009, certain of the Group'’s leasehold land and buildings
with an aggregate net carrying value of approximately HK$66,300,000
(2008: HK$70,200,000) were pledged to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group (note 28).

M - B RRE(R)

HMELSHELTHEBEFUAE LKA
WM TERREBEE  HEM
B4 527,102,000 T(Z T T N\ F :

38,651,000/ 7T) °

AEE bt 2 HE T30 REFR T

BA
Elsewhere
Hipith &

HK$°000
TERr

3,740
57,100

60,840

60,840

Elsewhere
Hih[z
HK$'000

FHT

3,520
3,553

7,073

7,073

Total
At
HK$'000
TET

4,406
68,886
73,292
78,757

179,736
258,493

331,785

Total
Ast
HK$'000
FHT

4,186
29,219
33,405
78,757

179,736
258,493

291,898

R-ZEENF+-_RA=+—0 X£E
A% F 48 Bk T /% {8 4966,300,000 78 7T
(ZZEZ N\ :70,200,000/6T)2HE
T REFEER - AREEME R

TEEEER (T 28) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g

15.

Investment properties

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZREE

Transfer from/(to) leasehold land and &5 /() E i RigF
buildings

Disposal HE

Net gain/(loss) from a fair value NEBEAE Y ZW /(B18)
adjustment

Carrying amount at 31 December R+=—A=+—B2ZKEE

The Group's investment properties are held under the following lease
terms:

Long term leases: REIMEA -
Hong Kong s

Medium term leases: FRERFR Y -
Hong Kong EB
Elsewhere E o3 [E

The Group's investment properties were revalued on 31 December 2009
by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, independent professionally qualified
valuers, at HK$150,840,000 on an open market, existing use basis. The
investment properties are leased to third parties under operating leases,
further summary details of which are included in note 34(a) to the
financial statements.

At 31 December 2009, the Group's investment properties with an
aggregate value of HK$75,000,000 (2008: HK$65,000,000) were pledged
to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 28).

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are included on
pages 119 to 120.

15. REW%E

Group

rEE
2009 2008
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
(i FTHET FEL
117,597 126,950
14 25,830 (3,334)
(4,948) =
6 12,361 (6,019)
150,840 117,597

REBZHREMELETHIHBRE

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
12,150 10,150
114,940 82,300
23,750 25,147
150,840 117,597

NZZBEAGE+-_A=1+—08 K&£EZ
KEMERBYEESERNSMBEL
TERARBERERREARMERE
E15/5150,840,000/87C i ZHREME
NEEROBTFE=F  EREEHRHE

WEMIFE 34(a) A ©

RZZEZNFF+ZA=+—8 ' x&£H
LA #{875,000,0008 T(ZSZENEF :
65,000,000 70 ) 2 HE Y EEEK A -
BAEEME - RBIEEERRE

28) ©

BRARBEREMEZEMHEBINS

119E 1208 -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g

16.

17.

Intangible assets

Trading rights S

Cost at 1 January and 31 December,

net of accumulated amortization Bk R 54
Cost (gross carrying amount) A (BRE2ME)
Accumulated amortization BT
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H

Upon the adoption of HKAS 38, trading rights are considered to have
indefinite lives because they are expected to contribute to the net cash
flows of the Group indefinitely, which are not amortized.

Other assets

EREESS((EREES5])

Cost of membership for a seat at

The Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange ~ &%
Society ("CGSE")
Deposits with the Stock Exchange: REERFTIES -
Compensation fund FEES
Fidelity fund ERE®
Stamp duty deposit iR
Contributions in cash to the Central RPREERIBMEARREES 2
Clearing and Settlement System Reftx

Guarantee Fund

Admission fee paid to Hong Kong
Securities Clearing Company Limited

Deposit with the HKFE Clearing
Corporation Limited

Rental deposits*

BERATRBEARAFAZAGER
REEHEEEAERDFZES

HERE *

* The rental deposits are related to office properties and retail shops leased
by the Group (note 34(b)) and the majority of the terms of the lease
arrangements are over one year. Included in this total is an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$20 million (2008: approximately HK$11
million) relating to operating leases expiring within one year. The Directors
are of the opinion that such deposits are of a long term nature on the basis
that the related leases are expected to be renewed upon their respective
expiry dates. Accordingly, the Directors consider it appropriate to classify
such deposits as non-current assets.

x
R—HA—BR+-A=t—HZK~E

16. BEEE

Group
ARE
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
271 271
524 524
(253) (253)
271 271

RMEBEFERFE KR AANRH
REARASEERMGT AR REF

B HURR AR BIRE M AR
17. HttEE

Group
i 3 |

2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET

1,500 1,500

250 250

250 250

250 250

250 250

250 250

1,532 1,500

73,323 70,640

77,605 74,890

WHAESEZHAZTRTERRAN
(M 340 2 HBAHRER S K
RN BHBBE—F HEPEHY
520,000,000 T(ZZ T N F: 4
11,000,000 7T ) B —FAE| B 2 8 &M
e EEZ2RA REBRANEDIRSEE
BHEE WERSEBRBM
ToAl EERAERUSRENER
ERBEE ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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18.

Interests in subsidiaries

Unlisted shares/investments, at cost
Due from subsidiaries

18. RHBRRER

F LTS RE - BRI

B ARRK

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have

no fixed terms of repayment.

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

Nominal value
of issued
ordinary

Company
NG

2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
1,085,873 1,085,873
418,583 398,823
1,504,456 1,484,696

MEARRFRELR - 2ERILEEE
B o

MEAR BT

Percentage
of equity

registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations  registered capital the Company activities
BRI
R/ R BERE YN g ]
28 RS & E AR AEE REBDL TEXH
Direct Indirect
HE L3
Acclaim Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$600,000 - 100  Investment holding
HEBRLF HBEARES 600,000 %7T REER
Chow Sang Sang Bullion Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 = 100 Bullion broking
Dealers Limited
BAEESKBRAR] BB 5,000,000 7T EeBAR
Chow Sang Sang (China) People’s Republic HK$300,000,000 - 100 Sale of jewellery
Company Limited* of China/
Mainland China
BEE(FE)EEERAF * hEARANE, 300,000,000 77T KREHE
B A3
Chow Sang Sang Commodities Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100 Dormant
Limited
BAEERRERAR i 5,000,000 77T R
Chow Sang Sang Corporate Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Sale of corporate
Gift Limited gift products
BEECEERERAT B8 1,000,000 % 7T PEEmHE

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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18.

Interests in subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

18.

Nominal value
of issued
ordinary

REE L RS ()

Percentage

of equity

registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations  registered capital the Company activities
217
R/ AR EBERE ADB G
% R B AR A E E RER DL TEXK
Direct Indirect
HE L3
Chow Sang Sang Diamond People’s Republic US$5,000,000 - 100 Diamond trading
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* of China/
Mainland China
FEEER(EB)BERAR* g A\RAME,/ 5,000,000 & 7T BLEE
B A3t
Chow Sang Sang Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$15,000,000 - 100 Group financing
BELERBERDF BB 15,000,000 7T SERE
Chow Sang Sang Futures Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100  Commodity broking
AEEHERR A B8 5,000,000 8 7T [EEAES
Chow Sang Sang Holdings (BVI) British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
Limited
AEEEE(CIBERRES) REER RS 50,000 % 7T REER
BRAT
Chow Sang Sang Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$250 - 100 Investment holding
AEEEBBRAR B 250 T REER
Chow Sang Sang Industrial People’s Republic HK$12,180,000 - 100  Property investment
(Fuzhou) Co., Ltd.* of China/
Mainland China
AEEBEERMN)BRAR * hEARANE, 12,180,000 7T MERE
B A
Chow Sang Sang International Hong Kong/ HK$2 - 100  Property investment
(Shunde) Limited Mainland China
B A BB (B ) B R A A BB,/ BN 28T MERE
Chow Sang Sang Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$2,500,000 - 100 Investment holding
BAEEREERAF B 2,500,000 % 7T REZER
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
(China) Co. Ltd.
BEEHRE ST (HB)ARAF REAERRES 17T REER
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
(China) Limited
BEERE (PE)ARAA B 18T REER

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED @ ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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g

18.

Interests in subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

18.  RMEQ AR (&)
Nominal value
of issued Percentage
ordinary of equity

registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations  registered capital the Company activities
BRI
R/ EE BERE YN g ]
28 RS E AR AEE BRER DL TEXK
Direct Indirect
HE L3
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and
Company Limited retail of jewellery
BAEERESTARAA BB 30,000,000 77T RESENTE
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery People’s Republic HK$120,166,800 - 100 Manufacture and
(Foshan) Co., Ltd.* of China/ sale of jewellery
Mainland China
BAEEKRE (FIL)BERAR * hEARAME, 120,166,800 78T RESUEREE
B A i
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery Pte Ltd Singapore SG$2 - 100 Dormant
AR 23T Tmex
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery People’s Republic HK$21,400,000 - 100 Manufacture and
(Shaanxi) Co., Ltd.* of China/ sale of jewellery
Mainland China
BEEEHRE ST (RA) HEARLME, 21,400,000 7T KREREREE
BRAR* B A3
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery People’s Republic RMB70,000,000 - 70 Manufacture and
(Shandong) Co., Ltd.** of China/ sale of jewellery
Mainland China
BEEERE(LR)BRAR ** REARLRME, 70,000,000 T ARE KRERERHEE
B A3
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery British Virgin Islands/ US$50,000 - 100 Sale of jewellery
(Taiwan) Limited Taiwan
BEEREITROARAR REBERARES/ 50,0005 7T KEHE
Chow Sang Sang Manufacturing British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
International Limited
AL BB R AR AR KRERRES 17T REER
Chow Sang Sang Nominees Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100  Provision of nominee
Limited services
BEEREBABRAT BB 1,000,000 7T R IR IR
Chow Sang Sang Property Netherlands Antilles/ US$30,000 - 100  Property investment
Holdings N.V. Hong Kong
Gl Rl i 30,000%7T MERE

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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18.

Interests in subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

18. RHEAEER (&)
Nominal value
of issued Percentage
ordinary of equity

registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations  registered capital the Company activities
BT
B3/ EE LERE AR frdh
8 RE&HE AR A E E REBSL TEXEH
Direct Indirect
HiE L3
Chow Sang Sang Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 - 100  Property investment
FAEEBEZERAT o 10,000,000 7T MERE
Chow Sang Sang Securities Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 - 100 Securities broking
BAEEBLFBRAR] B8 10,000,000 7T BHLE
Emphasis Jewellery Company Limited Macau MOP25,000 - 100 Retail of jewellery
HERAERRAR P 25,0002 7T KEZE
Fullink Developments Inc. British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100 Dormant
KBRS 17T Tmex
Tsin Chuk Kam Manufactory Ltd. British Virgin Islands/ US$100,000 - 100 Processing of
Mainland China jewellery
TREBERBRAH EBRBRESE/ 100,000 7T KEMLT
B A
World Commercial Sales Hong Kong HK$2,500,000 - 100 Wholesale of
Company Limited precious metals
HRBBITERAA] BB 2,500,000 % 7T BEoBHE
338.Net Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Provision of
information
technology services
B 28T RUEE AR RS
& These companies were registered as wholly-foreign-invested enterprises * N ENRDIREREARLIME AR TM

under the law of the People’s Republic of China.

**  The company was registered as a sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise

under the law of the People’s Republic of China.

* %

ZENERERHE -

W AR TIREHEARKAMBE AR 2

FHRERERT -
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19.

Interests in associates

Share of net assets
Loan from an associate

IEFEE
REERBZER

19.

The loan from an associate was unsecured, interest-free and was fully

repaid during the year.

Particulars of the associates are as follows:

Particulars of

Place of

incorporation/

REE DR R
Group
A%E
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
11,611 11,028
- (128)
11,611 10,900

REERRZ EFTIEER  RERER
FREHEE -

BELRZHENT -
Percentage

of ownership
interest

issued shares held/ registration attributable Principal
Name registered capital and operations to the Group activities
B RITRE R/ MR EEBARE

=1 AR A R i 2 ERADL TEEK

Foo Sang Enterprises Ordinary shares Hong Kong 36.63 Property

Company Limited of HK$100 each investment

BEEEXFRAA SIREE 10057 BB MEIRE

Tk

Qingdao Kang Hua RMB7,440,000 People’s Republic 32.00 Processing

Diamond Co., Ltd.* of China/ of diamonds
Mainland China

ERREERBRAA* 7,440,000 TARE REARLME EAMT
HR B 3

The above companies are not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or
other member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

* The company was registered as a sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise
under the law of the People’s Republic of China.

The above associates are indirectly held by the Company and have been
accounted for using the equity method in these financial statements.

LARAYHH BB LK BT EFHITE
Bty kB B 2 Al

* RRRDRETEARANEEZEMZ

FIEERERT °

FilB R AR RA DR EERE - AN
BlmEAERDAESRRAE -
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19.

20.

Interests in associates (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarized financial information of the
Group's associates.

Assets BE
Liabilities BE
Revenue Wz
Profit/(loss) after tax BEi%wEFH,(EER)

Available-for-sale investments

Listed equity investments in Hong Kong, &% Fmfk{HEE

at market value* BmE*
Unlisted equity investment, at fair value 3E FTRHIRE - IR ATFEE
Unlisted equity investments, at cost FELETRINIEE + HAA

The above equity investments were issued by corporate entities.

During the year, the gross gain in respect of the Group’s available-for-sale
investments recognized directly in other comprehensive income amounted
to HK$327,872,000 (2008: gross loss of HK$731,514,000).

The above investments consist of equity securities which have no fixed
maturity date or coupon rate.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted market
prices. The fair value of unlisted available-for-sale equity investment has
been estimated using valuation techniques including a discounted cash
flow analysis, and based on assumptions which make use of market
parameters as supported by open market value, etc. The Directors believe
that the estimated fair value resulting from the valuation technique,
which is recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position, and
the related change in fair value, which is recorded in other comprehensive
income, is reasonable, and that it was the most appropriate value at the
end of the reporting period.

19.

20.

Rt DR #ES ()
TREJNAEE R E DR 2 M5 E R

=

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
39,087 37,369
(5,857) (6,149)
13,291 16,044
3,251 (1,201)
AHHERE
Group
r5E
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
690,518 364,577
13,998 12,768
739 739
14,737 13,507
705,255 378,084

FER - HEREMEEKREEACAEER
A ERE AIZE A 327,872,000 87T
(ZEZTN\F: £ E18731,514,000/8

Jo) °

A e mET A RS &
2R ES -

LABROKREZ A FEEHRETSRE
AE - FETARHERNREZAFE
EDNRABRTRARERENNMERETT
AR T2 RRTVEREBR RS
EXRHZTH28% - EETAEEZ
fhat R FEEERGAMBRRRTIRL
HBALYEEEHENAME2E KRR
R EZHEBRE  UANREHRER
HEZEE-
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20.

21.

22.

Available-for-sale investments (continued) 20. AHHERE(E)

As at 31 December 2009, certain unlisted equity investments with an R_ZEZNF+_A=+—H BRAE
aggregate carrying amount of HK$739,000 (2008: HK$739,000) were BAFEEGHEEAKR  2EERA
stated at cost because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is EEURMAEEATEE WAL
so significant that the Directors are of the opinion that their fair values {739,000 o(= & J\ F : 739,000
cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not intend to dispose of BIL) 2B T Ik LMD IR E TR A5
them in the near future. R AEERERAIRRREEZSR
As at 31 December 2009, the Group's listed equity investments with a R-_ZEZNF+-_A=+—H A&EH
carrying value of HK$203,524,000 (2008: HK$73,600,000) were pledged LA E TR 4% B BRI {8 203,524,000 8 70
to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 28). (ZZZ N\ 4 : 73,600,000 7t ) £ &

W BREEFRE -RBITEEEER
(KfsE28) °

* On 6 March 2000, under the Schemes of Arrangements of the Stock * RZBEEZEE=ZFRF B BEBEXIMH
Exchange and the Futures Exchange and pursuant to the Exchanges and REERAE GG 2KRHG A T
Clearing Houses (Merger) Ordinance, the Group received 6,223,500 shares 2 AEBERSEBRINLEENMA
of HK$1.00 each in Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEC"), R A &([E R AT 1)6,223,5000 & I
six exchange trading rights in the Stock Exchange and one exchange trading HE{E1.008 T2 RH &N EBERAR
right in the Futures Exchange as a consideration for the cancellation of its SER—EABRRAXHE UBMKR
six shares held in the Stock Exchange and one share held in the Futures EMIMFEZL A ARROREBRZA
Exchange. As at 1 January 2009 and 31 December 2009, the Group held BEZ-—BBRH R-_ZTEZNEFE—A
4,953,500 shares of HKEC, five exchange trading rights in the Stock —HERZZEENF+ZRA=1+—8 K&
Exchange and one exchange trading right in the Futures Exchange. B BB FT4,953,500 R AR D« T (R

RFRGER—ARARAR HH -

Inventories 21. REH
Group
by 3|
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT FHET
Goods held for sale HEHE ZEm 2,884,841 2,528,754
Accounts receivable/Receivables arising from securities and 22. ERER BIERBELLEEZ
futures broking FE W BR X
Jewellery retail KEEE
The Group's sales are normally made on a cash basis. Credit card AEEHEE—RURERH - REEMR
receivables from financial institutions in respect of retail sales are aged B B s 2 RS A REER 2 R DR
within one month. There are wholesale customers who have been given —ER - BEMERFPERME+TAAR
credit periods within 45 days. ZERERHE o
Wholesale of diamonds ERH R
The Group normally grants credit periods of up to 60 days to its trade AEE-RRESEPREZRERRS
customers. BATA -

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED @ ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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22.

Accounts receivable/Receivables arising from securities and

futures broking (continued)

Wholesale of precious metals

The Group's wholesale of precious metals is normally conducted on a

cash basis.

Securities and commodities broking

Securities deals are settled two days after the trade date, and
commodities deals are normally settled on a cash basis.

Accounts receivable

Receivables arising from securities and
futures broking conducted in the
ordinary course of business:

Cash clients
Clearing houses
Loans to margin clients

Impairment

Receivables arising from securities and
futures broking

FEKRRTR

ERREBPE SN PEEL
B2 RBERR:

Re®P

FEEPT
HFREFER
BIE

BRLHMERLEE L
FEHRR

Total accounts receivable and receivables JEWBR R R FEHR HAEREL

arising from securities and futures
broking

B2 BB ERR B

Apart from the receivable balances arising from securities and futures
broking, the remaining balances are non-interest-bearing.

22. BUERR BERDERLELEZ

FE W B (4R
BB

AEEZESBYRE—RURERS -

BERBREL

BHREENR S AEMAGE

B—RUBSEH -

Group

A%E
2009
HK$'000
TET

326,272

120,291
3,704
77,250
201,245
(93)

201,152

527,424

=
T3
on
il

2008
HK$°000
TAT

212,352

93,432
5,632

39,461

138,525

(3,677)

134,848

347,200

o At AEBIGRRE o
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MR &M

22.

Accounts receivable/Receivables arising from securities and
futures broking (continued)

The movements in provisions for impairment of accounts receivable and
receivables arising from securities and futures broking are as follows:

Accounts receivable: JEUTARR -
At 1 January Kn—H—H
Impairment loss reversed (note 6) BEREREEE(IEe)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H
Receivables arising from securities and ~ EARHERLLELZ
futures broking: FEUBR X -
At 1 January K—A—H
Impairment losses recognized BRERREEE(MEe)
(note 6)
Impairment losses reversed (note 6) BREEREEE(MTe6)
At 31 December K+=ZA=+—H

Included in the above provisions for impairment of accounts receivable
and receivables arising from securities and futures broking is a provision
for individually impaired receivables of nil (2008: Nil) and HK$93,000
(2008: HK$3,677,000) with carrying amounts before provision of nil
(2008: Nil) and HK$93,000 (2008: HK$3,677,000), respectively. Such
provision was determined after taking into account the ageing of the
respective account receivable balances, the creditworthiness of the
debtors, their repayment history and their historical write-off experience.
Such receivables are not expected to be recovered. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable and receivables arising from
securities and futures broking not impaired at the end of the reporting
period, based on the due date, is as follows:

Not yet due AREHA
Within 30 days past due 308N
31 to 60 days past due #H#131260H
61 to 90 days past due #H61290AR
Over 90 days past due B HER90H
Loans to margin clients* HREFER*

R R ERBE
FE W B ()

PR R S i o R R e E A 2 R
RZBERBEENT

REEEZ

Group

r5E
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
- 22
= (22)
3,677 108
1" 3,609
(3,595) (40)
93 3,677
P ERERRE SRR REE

FEWBRZURERET D mg%ﬁﬁaﬁ
EREUEZBEAZS(ZZEENF  B)R
9mwmm_?7ﬂi3wmw%
) EEENEEES A AT(Z
A¢:§>&%pm%ﬁi:§§ﬂ¢:
3,677,00087) - BEAREBEHKEESE
[EMBR RS 2 BRiR - BISAZIEE &
7B B I BENBERREETE B
e BR TR B R ] - AR
#ﬁr#m%hﬁfﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁmMﬁ
l:li)f Elﬁtﬂ/ °

RIERR - BARE 2 RYTRR R
R ERGLES 2 RRRTIRES ‘J%ﬁ EI Z
RiRDMTE -

Group

r5E
2009 2008
HK$000 HK$'000
TER FET
347,955 239,081
92,495 64,176
6,309 2,042
486 92
2,929 2,349
450,174 307,740
77,250 39,460
527,424 347,200
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MR &M

22.

23.

24,

Accounts receivable/Receivables arising from securities and
futures broking (continued)

* The loans to margin clients are secured by the underlying pledged
securities, repayable on demand and bear interest at commercial rates. No
ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the Directors, an ageing
analysis is not relevant in view of the nature of the business of securities
margin financing. As at 31 December 2009, the total market value of
securities pledged as collateral in respect of the loans to margin clients was
HK$427,652,000 (2008: HK$140,576,000).

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history
of default. Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record with
the Group. Based on past experience, the Directors of the Company are
of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. Except for loans
to margin clients, the Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances.

22. BUWERR BEROERLELEZ

P BR R (4R)

S HFREFEFAEREDERESER
o BREKEHEE R E GRS
ERNEFHREEEEMED €224
RERDITERTA « BMEBERBRED o
R-ZBENE+-R=+—H 5@
HFREFEZURFKAERAR 22
M 1{E 5427,652,0008 L(ZTF )\ F :
140,576,000387T) ©

ABHREREZERYRRAAEL BR
ARERRRSZDHEP - CABERRE
ZRUERAZENAEBREERIFER
AEZBURP - REFBELR - ARF
EXRPEANEEERYEEAEE - B
RBRIDARE R 2ENE - BEARZ
SHBELRERSB BRARTEPEN
SN REBW E LT AR B T HE A
mAEMMBEEREE

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 23. FEMNRIE - RERHEMBERER
Group Company
F5HE b VNG|
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET TEx FHET
Prepayments a0 64,827 56,014 226 145
Deposits Ze 13,379 11,382 = =
Other receivables H e UM BR 3R 6,776 6,462 = =
84,982 73,858 226 145
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial P EESRSHIERE - BEE L
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which there ER B EERTHTETEOLS
was no recent history of default. FEUAR K -
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 24, ROAVEEIEREEBZRE
Group
by |
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FET
Listed equity investments in B LTRORE - ZME
Hong Kong, at market value 8,010 5,820
The above equity investments were held for trading and issued by LBHRATFHEEERE - YMERE
corporate entities. BT -
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MR &M

25.

Cash and cash equivalents/Cash held on behalf of clients 25.

An analysis of cash and cash equivalents is as follows:

REREERE REFEERS
ReRERBE2AFMT

Group Company
F5H NG
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTiEx FET THERT TAET
Cash and bank balances B RFITER 378,536 144,654 1,410 1,327
Non-pledged time deposits ~ TFHREFZIHR DR =EA 2
with original maturity of AR E BTF N
less than three months
when acquired 463 463 - -
Cash and cash equivalents RekEREE 378,999 145,117 1,410 1,327

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the
Group's subsidiaries operate in Mainland China denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB"”) amounted to RMB28,576,000 (approximately HK$32,457,000)
(2008: RMB48,871,000 (approximately HK$55,508,000)). The RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorized to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Time deposits are made for one month and earn interest at the
respective time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with licensed banks to
hold securities and futures clients’ monies arising from its normal course
of business. The Group has classified the clients’ monies as “Cash held
on behalf of clients” under the current assets section of the consolidated
statement of financial position and recognized the corresponding
accounts payable to the respective clients on the grounds that it is liable
for any loss or misappropriation of the clients’ monies. The Group is not
allowed to use the clients’ monies to settle its own obligations.

RIEHIR - NEBIEF B R &8 2 K
BRARAUAARBBBEM RS RIBITER
#£28,576,0007C A & ¥(4732,457,000
BIL)(ZZTZT )\ : 48,871,000 AR
5 (#)55,508,0008 7)) - ARBATEEH
HMABRBEMER - AW REPE AL
ZINEE GBI R AETE - EERAESE
T AREEASBEREETIINEE
B2 BT ARE LB AINE

ROTREREE ARTERNELZ A
KFRME - ERFER2EFRBA L —E
A WREHERNERRALE - RITE
BRENEEREMIMNYEIBOLE
IRAT

AEERFRRITRRBIUETRS - A
FHEFIHEEFPNABEBEL LR
B AEEERUERPFEADBREA
FHARREARBEER T 2[REPH
BHE ] YREE LEPFAEZEFE
KA BEEMERREN TRETP
B - ARETNEERFFFARBERAR
S B -
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MR &M

26.

Accounts payable/Payables arising from securities and

futures broking

Accounts payable

Payables arising from securities and
futures broking conducted in the
ordinary course of business:

Cash clients
Margin clients
Clearing houses

Payables arising from securities and
futures broking

Total accounts payable and payables
arising from securities and futures
broking

ARG

ERBEBIEFRAERL
B2 EARRSR:

RekP
HREP
REM

Bk AERILELEY
FEf RRR

RS REF RS RE
B4 2 AR AEE

An ageing analysis of the accounts payable and payables arising from
securities and futures broking as at the end of the reporting period,

based on the due date, is as follows:

Within 30 days

(including amounts not yet due)
31 to 60 days
Over 60 days

Cash clients accounts payable”
Margin clients accounts payable*

30ARK
(BEXRIHEER)

31Z60H

H#iE60H

ERBReESER
ENAREPER

26.

ERERBERPERLEER
A% 8RR

Group

iy 3 |
2009 2008
HK$000 HK$'000
THET FET
132,231 70,023
424,245 332,978
33,296 48,964
16,664 -
474,205 381,942
606,436 451,965

RIBERR - BNESRESFRRELE
EE 2z BARFREREA 2 Rk o
T

Group

r5E
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
147,810 69,271
770 694
315 58
148,895 70,023
424,245 332,978
33,296 48,964
606,436 451,965
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26.

27.

Accounts payable/Payables arising from securities and
futures broking (continued)

# Included in the cash clients accounts payable arising from dealing in
securities conducted in the ordinary course of business is an amount of
approximately HK$333,796,000 (2008: HK$262,410,000) representing
those clients’ undrawn monies/excess deposits placed with the Group.
As at 31 December 2009, the cash clients accounts payable included an
amount of HK$6,495,000 (2008: HK$4,048,000) in respect of securities
transactions undertaken for the accounts of certain Directors. The cash
clients accounts payable are repayable on demand and bear interest at
commercial rates. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the
Directors, an ageing analysis is not meaningful in view of the nature of the
business of dealing in securities.

* The margin clients accounts payable are repayable on demand and bear
interest at commercial rates. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the
opinion of the Directors, an ageing analysis is not relevant in view of the
nature of the business of securities margin financing.

Derivative financial instruments

Assets BE
Forward currency contracts EESNES L)
Liabilities afE

Bullion contracts BEeBAN

The forward currency contracts and bullion contracts are stated at
their fair values. The above transactions involving derivative financial
instruments are conducted with financial institutions with obligations
rated grade “A” or above.

As at 31 December 2009, the aggregate notional amount of the forward
currency contracts was HK$23,150,000 (2008: HK$366,483,000)
and the aggregate contractual amount of the bullion contracts was
HK$269,816,000 (2008: HK$61,676,000).

The purpose of the above contracts entered into by the Group is to
manage the Group’s currency rate and bullion price exposures. Such
contracts did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting.

26.

27.

ERERBERPERLEER
P44 BR K ()

# BREERREBTRETEFEEEAL
ZERME L TP RN 333,796,000
BIL(ZEZE N\NF: 262,410,000/
TT)AZERFPERASEEZRRR
RBE /BN RS RZZEThE
+t-RA=1t—H ENREEZFER
BEABETESRFENESFRHZ
# 186,495,000 (=TT )\ F:
4,048,000 T) - ENBREBTPEREXK
EREXBEERIREERTGE &
REHEZEBME  EERERED
MEETK  BEBBRRDT

* PR P R AR BRI EE R IE
BEBRETE - ERNESTREBES
M8 ERERRREITERTA > &
ERBEREAN -

N

TESRMIE

Group

rEE
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
180 2,759

14,096 2,769

BRI RESBANRANTERE
Sl - BIUSRITESRITIAZR 5T
EEFREFERIAIRIIALZ SRE
BT -

RZZBEAE+-—A=+—8 - BHINE
B AEHEAEE23,150,000/8 T
(ZZZ\F : 366,483,000/87C) * ME
CEBAHNZANBEEES 269,816,000
BIL(ZZEZT)\FE : 61,676,000/87T) °

AEERY LA EHEEEARE 2
BEXREcBERRR -ZFAHLT
NRE MR 2RI -
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28. Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Group
rEE
Current ZHf
Bank overdrafts — RITEX -
unsecured Eiiigi
Bank loans - RITER -
unsecured Eiiigi
Bank loans — RITER -
secured BHEH

Current portion of ~ RHIRITER
long term bank REIERR -
loans — unsecured &K I

Current portion of ~ RHRITER
long term bank ERER D -
loans — secured BHEM

Non-current AR H
Bank loans — RITE -
unsecured gl
Bank loans — RITE -
secured HHE

Contractual
interest
rate
BHFI=E

%

4.9
3.1-5.3

1.3-1.6

1.4

1.3-1.6

1.4

2009

Maturity
FH

On demand

BREXR
2010

2010

2010

2011-2012

2011-2012

28.

HK$’000
TE&T

125,570
223,074

348,644

58,266

26,400
84,666

433,310

111,133
53,600

164,733

598,043

As at 31 December 2009, the Group’s banking facilities amounted to
HK$1,791,040,000 (2008: HK$1,261,004,000), of which HK$598,043,000
(2008: HK$389,099,000) had been utilized as at the end of the reporting
period. Certain of the banking facilities amounting to HK$538,500,000
(2008: HK$435,000,000) are secured by certain assets of the Group as
disclosed in notes 14, 15 and 20 to the financial statements.

The carrying amounts of the bank loans at the end of the reporting
period are denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollar
Renminbi
New Taiwan dollar

BT
naw

FERITER
2008
Contractual
interest
rate Maturity HK$'000
B HFE 2|58 H FAET
%
On demand
5.4 BER 26,639
1.0-6.4 2009 332,460
11-1.2 2009 30,000
389,099
389,099
389,099
R-ZEZAF+-A=+—H &&
ZRIT1E E % A 1,791,040,0007% 7T
(ZZ =T )\ F :1,261,004,000% 7T )
H $1598,043,0008 jL(— T T N\ 4 :
389,099,000 T ) R EHRE B
e & T #1715 5% 538,500,0007% T
(=T \F : 435,000,000/870) A&
NI RENTE 14 15 R20KEZE
TEEERER -
BITEFNHERR 2 REEN TSR
REL
Group
rEE
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
249,399 82,000
341,372 291,280
7,272 15,819
598,043 389,099
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29.

Deferred tax

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are as

follows:

Group
A58

Deferred tax liabilities

BERESE

At 1 January 2008 RZZETN\F—H—H

Deferred tax charged/(credited) FRPIEZSFENR,/

to the income statement (BE) 2 ELHIE
during the year, including a (BREXHEES)
credit of HK$422,000 due to S/ &f#&E 2

the effect of a change in tax ~ 422,000/87t)
rate (Note 10) (MzE10)

Deferred tax credited to the FAEREEHTE
leasehold land and buildings ~ MABAE L KIETF
revaluation reserve during BEhREEERZ
the year due to the effect of ~ JEFERIE

a change in tax rate

At 31 December 2008 and RZZEENF

1 January 2009 +TZA=+—HRk
—TTNF—A—H

Deferred tax charged/(credited) ERRBEMR
to the income statement (Bm) 2R B
during the year (Note 10) (K¥zE10)

Deferred tax debited to the FAREE LI REF
leasehold land and buildings — Efff##EIIR 2
revaluation reserve during EERIE
the year

Exchange realignment b i, o B

Gross deferred tax liabilities RZZETNF
recognized in the +-A=+—H
consolidated statement of RERB SRR R

financial position at R EER T
31 December 2009 BREE

—

Depreciation
allowance in

29. EEBIE
FREEHEEEREEZSHNT

excess of
related
depreciation
and
revaluation  Withholding

of properties taxes Others Total
HERBE
HBEH

WERMEEM FRB Hith &t

HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FTExT FTET FTET THERT

56,927 — — 56,927

(2,814) 6,193 - 3,379

(2,833) - - (2,833)

51,280 6,193 - 57,473

(47) 31,152 86 31,191

2,130 - - 2,130

- - 33 33

53,363 37,345 119 90,827
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29.

Deferred tax (continued)

Group
Ey 3 |

Deferred tax assets

EERBEE

Decelerated
tax

29. EEBIE(E)

Losses
available for
offsetting
against future

depreciation taxable profits Others Total
PR 8
RRPERB
HERENE w2 B R Hith &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET FTET FEx FERT
At 1 January 2008 R-ZTN\F—F—H 1,764 137 366 2,267
Deferred tax credited/(charged) FRRIEZRERER
to the income statement (k) ZUJR’IE
during the year, including a (BREXHXEHY
charge of HK$109,000 due k21 09,000,%75)
to the effect of a change in (FftzE10)
tax rate (Note 10) (951) (137) 158 (930)
Exchange realignment PE AR = = (14) (14)
At 31 December 2008 and RZZEZTN\F
1 January 2009 +ZA=+—Hk
—ZTNF-A—H 813 - 510 1,323
Deferred tax credited to the  FRKIEEED
income statement during BRI
the year (Note 10) (F§3E10) 2,646 - 256 2,902
Gross deferred tax assets RZZTNE
recognized in the ‘I'_ﬂ_‘l' =]
consolidated statement of Riza I BIR R
financial position at TR 2 EERTA
31 December 2009 BELH 3,459 - 766 4,225
The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong and elsewhere (including AEERBEREMME(EIESER
Taiwan and Macau) of HK$1,182,000 (2008: HK$138,000) and M) EELZREERS 3@1,182,000,%75
HK$31,519,000 (2008: HK$32,969,000), respectively. The tax losses (ZFF/\% : 138,000787T) % 31,519,000

arising in Hong Kong are available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the tax losses arose, whilst
those arising in Taiwan and Macau are available for a maximum period of
ten years and three years, respectively. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognized in respect of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries
that have been loss-making for some time and it is uncertain whether
sufficient taxable profit will be available against which the tax losses can
be utilized.

BL(ZEENE: 32969000/575) i
BEES 2 BB EE R R EKHEZ
:?Eﬁﬁﬁﬁ NA]Z KRR IE R A
AREBRRMEEZHEBEZ&RER
H%EWE PRIBTER=F BRHEER
BREDEEBZMBAR  BRILAE
TRAACAEETEF A BIEEEHE
EE'WlﬁM%$EE%W ELEFREE
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g

29. Deferred tax (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in the People’s Republic of China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. For the Group's subsidiaries established in the
People’s Republic of China, the applicable rate is 10% (2008: 5% or
10%). The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of

China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of

dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

30. Share capital

Authorized: ETE
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 1,000,000,0008 & A EI &
HK$0.25 each 0.258 7.2 LAk
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER

601,920,000 ordinary shares of

HK$0.25 each 0.258 T LR

31. Reserves

(a) Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 34 to 37 of the financial

statements.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for wholly-foreign-
invested enterprises and sino-foreign equity joint venture, a portion
of the profits of the Group’s subsidiaries which are established in
People’s Republic of China has been transferred to reserve funds

which are restricted as to use.

The amount of goodwill arising on the acquisition of
subsidiaries in prior years, which remains eliminated against the
consolidated retained profits, amounted to HK$4,832,000 (2008:

HK$4,832,000).

601,920,0000% =% Tl &

29. EEBIE(E)

RIBFR B EMERE  NREARLM
B 2 INERECERIINREEES
IR BB 10% BURTEIRT - BT
“ZENF-A—HRBER WEAR
—EE+E+-_A=t-HB#%Bz%
Fle gAEBMRPEARIMBAMN
ZHBRAAME EAKEAB10%
(ZZ T N\ F:5%310%) A It
AEBEEARZSRTEARS
MBERYIZHBRAR-_ZTTNE
— A —BRES BRI IR 2B EH

TERRH ©
RRBMERF RS 2 REWEL KRG
e
30. BA
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
250,000 250,000
150,480 150,480
31. &
(a) Z£&E

AEEZFEERARFARNEFE
ZEBIENA B REEI4E37
BREGRRaB2BRA -

REERREIERELE RPN
REBERERRIZERAR AR -
ARE BN EE AR MBS H
BRAZBDENCBRIRER
Rb2HES -

NAFERKEBHBARELEZR
BENPRNRARBRENMEZ HE
#4,832,0008 L(Z T T )\ F:

4,832,000387T) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BB ENE
31. Reserves (continued) 31. fEGE)
(b) Company (b) ZA&AQF
Share Contributed Retained
premium surplus profits Total
AR ME BARH REBEF a5t
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BifsE FTERT TET TET FTAET
At 1 January 2008 R-ZZN\F—HF—H 99,724 975,582 199,341 1,274,647
Total comprehensive FANEENEEE
income for the year 1 - - 105,717 105,717
Interim 2008 dividend T \FHEBRE 12 = = (48,154) (48,154)
Proposed final 2008 BR_ETN\E
dividend REARR S 12 - - (138,442) (138,442)
At 31 December 2008 RZZZENF+=A
and 1 January 2009 =t+—Bk
—TTNF-HA-H 99,724 975,582 118,462 1,193,768
Total comprehensive FRZEKGERE
income for the year 1 - - 200,642 200,642
Interim 2009 dividend ZTTNEPREHRE 12 - - (42,134) (42,134)
Proposed final 2009 BR-ZTSNF
dividend AERR S 12 - - (156,499) (156,499)
At 31 December 2009 N-EENFE+_A
= | 99,724 975,582 120,471 1,195,777

The Company’s contributed surplus arose in 1992 as a result of
the Group's reorganization and represents the difference between
the nominal value of the Company’s shares allocated under the
reorganization scheme and the then consolidated net asset value of
the acquired subsidiaries.

Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the contributed surplus is
distributable to shareholders under certain circumstances.

ARAR—NN_FEEZHABEHKE
AEEEAR  DHREEAFEEZ AR
AN AERRKBHREARER Z&E
BEHMEZER

BREBRE-NN—FRQRE EETE
T BABRBRA DK TR -
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g

32.

Maturity profile of assets and liabilities

An analysis of the maturity profile of certain assets and financial liabilities
of the Group analyzed by the remaining period at the end of the
reporting period to the contractual maturity date, as disclosed pursuant
to the Listing Rules, is as follows:

32. BEREEZIHER
BELTRARERBEEAREETEE
O BREERBRERRECORHA L
W EREARE 2 B ER AT

No fixed
terms of 1 year 5 years
repayment/ or less or less
Repayable 3 months but over but over
on demand or less 3 months 1 year Undated Total
EEE
mES,/ =f8A
BERER =f8R Bk —F0E
Bz ZUT Z-F 2R EHR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TET THT TET THL
As at 31 December 2009 R=ZEhE
+=A=+-H
Assets £E
Accounts receivable FEM R 77,178 249,094 - - - 326,272
Receivables arising from  EHRHFELLELZ
securities and JEMERR
futures broking 102,290 98,862 - - - 201,152
Cash held on behalf of ~ REFHERES
clients 79,012 309,000 - - - 388,012
Cash and cash ReRERES
equivalents 378,536 463 - - - 378,999
637,016 657,419 - - - 1,294,435
Liabilities* B
Accounts payable FEFTEER 11,103 121,128 = = 5 132,231
Payables arising from BERBERLEE Y
securities and futures FERARR
broking 367,092 107,113 - - - 474,205
Financial liabilities BETEEMERER
included in other RIETIEE 2
payables and accruals BIisaE 73,332 75,940 - - - 149,272
Derivative financial fTESRIA
instruments - - - - 14,096 14,096
Short term interest- RET R RTER
bearing bank
borrowings 125,570 223,074 - - - 348,644
Long term interest- REBETER
bearing bank
borrowings - 22,027 65,641 167,150 - 254,818
577,097 549,282 65,641 167,150 14,096 1,373,266

* Based on contractual undiscounted payments

* RETRERTEFEHE
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32.

Maturity profile of assets and liabilities (continued)

As at 31 December 2008

Assets

Accounts receivable

Receivables arising from
securities and
futures broking

Cash held on behalf of
clients

Cash and cash
equivalents

Liabilities*

Loan from an associate

Accounts payable

Payables arising from
securities and
futures broking

Financial liabilities
included in other
payables and accruals

Derivative financial
instruments

Short term interest-
bearing bank
borrowings

32. EEREEZIMER(E)
No fixed
terms of 1 year 5 years
repayment/ or less or less
Repayable 3 months but over but over
on demand or less 3 months 1 year Undated Total
EET
s/ =fEA
AREX =f@A Wk —FHRE
BE FAT E—F 0% EHR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TAT AT TAT TAT AT
RZZTN\E
T=A=t-H
BE
FERER TR 40,956 171,396 = = — 212,352
BRI BERREEY
e
67,163 67,685 - - - 134,848
REFHERSE
95,399 230,000 - - - 325,399
e REREE
144,655 462 = = = 145,117
348,173 469,543 = = = 817,716
B>
REE DR ZER 128 - - - - 128
TR 14,796 55,227 = = = 70,023
JETHRTR
311,374 70,568 - - - 381,942
BEEAMENER
RfEtERZ
HBaE 62,326 50,658 3,601 6,017 = 122,602
fiEeRIA
= = = = 2,769 2,769
EHRRITER
26,639 339,744 22,716 - — 389,099
415,263 516,197 26,317 6,017 2,769 966,563

* Based on contractual undiscounted payments

* BWERTOERTRFEHE
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33.

Contingent liabilities
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided for
in the financial statements were as follows:
Group
A%H
2009
HK$'000
FTERT

Guarantees for banking and A% THBARZ Rk

other facilities of certain Hi(Z EHEF
subsidiaries -
(@)  The Company has executed guarantees to banks for gold trading

facilities granted to certain subsidiaries. The utilized amount of
such facilities covered by the Company’s guarantees which also
represented the financial exposure of the Company at the end of
the reporting period was US$36 million (approximately HK$282
million) (2008: US$41 million (approximately HK$318 million)).
The total amounts of such facilities covered by the Company’s
guarantees at the end of the reporting period were US$77 million
(approximately HK$597 million) and HK$50 million (2008: US$74
million (approximately HK$574 million) and HK$50 million).

The Company has executed guarantees to banks for banking
facilities granted to certain subsidiaries. The utilized amount of
such facilities covered by the Company’s guarantees which also
represented the financial exposure of the Company at the end of
the reporting period was HK$598 million (2008: HK$389 million).
The total amount of such facilities covered by the Company’s
guarantees at the end of the reporting period was HK$1,791 million
(2008: HK$1,261 million).

33. FAREE
RMEIR - WERY B & TR 2K
REF/WT

Company

A YN
2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TERT FHET
- 879,870 706,600
(a ARAREHETHERRERZ

HEBECHEBRRITRYER -
AARERITEEZZSERZE
HASHE  MAARBRRERR
2 T AR - %536,000,0003% T
(4282,000,000 % 7T )
(ZZZ)\F : 41,000,000 % T
(#7318,000,0007& 7T )) ° Rk E
K ARAERMEEZZE
=5 # % % &77,000,000% 7T
(#7597,000,000 7T ) & 50,000,000
ET(CEEN\E 74,000,000 7¢
(#)574,000,0005% 7T ) & 50,000,000
BIT) °

EH A& E AL
AR ESR R T ER
% /598,000,000 TT
(:%%)\iaagooo,ooo/%
ﬁ)oﬁéi& i

1,791, ooo ooo/ﬁrc(:
1,261,000,0007T) °
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34,

35.

Operating lease arrangements

(a)

(b)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms
ranging from one to three years. The terms of the leases generally
also require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its
tenants falling due as follows:

—FR
—EhF EEMFEEEN

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties and retail shops
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for these properties
and shops are negotiated for terms ranging from one to ten years.

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due
as follows:

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth years, inclusive ~—ZR4F BREMEAFEAN
After five years hE#

Commitments

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 34(b)
above, the Group had the following capital commitments in respect of
property, plant and equipment at the end of the reporting period:

Contracted, but not provided for
Authorized, but not contracted for

B EARRE
BHZ - BREE]

34, RERLNRE

(a)

(b)

35. JRiE

HAEA
AEENGERNZHEEERE
MEM ) KR RS
RE=F  BOGR—REFRAE
BExftRERE RBRBEEET SR
RIEEHRE SR -

R_FBENF+_A=+—0 &
SEFEBFIE A HEHE L
B IR - RARKERERE
Wk @M -

2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$°000
TRT THET
6,006 5,330
2,335 1,827
8,341 7,157
EBA
AREAEERORARETH]

REMERTEER - HEVER
ERERCERIEAR =+
& o

R-EEAFT-R=t+-8 &
ST SRR - &5
A - ARBERERNEREE
m :

2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET THET
253,253 268,201
274,647 421,475
48 24,709
527,948 714,385

BR b b B 52 34(b) 7F 8 2 45 & A K) AR

bR
#es

AEERNBERAREATERYE

R BAASE
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$°000
TER TiET
- 3,148
5,245 616
5,245 3,764
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36.

Connected and related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following material transactions
with connected and/or related parties during the year:

(a)
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions with connected and/or related parties

On 19 December 2008, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
renewed the sales agreement with Qingdao Jinghua Diamond &
Jewellery Co., Ltd. (“Qingdao Jinghua”) and Shanghai Jinghua
Diamond & Jewellery Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Jinghua”) for selling
rough diamonds and polished diamonds to Qingdao Jinghua and
Shanghai Jinghua for the year ended 31 December 2009. Qingdao
Jinghua and Shanghai Jinghua are the subsidiaries of Qingdao
Jinghua Investment Management Co., Ltd., a 30% shareholder of
a 70%-owned subsidiary of the Company. The selling prices were
determined based on the category, quantity and the prevailing
market price of the diamonds. The aggregate sales to Qingdao
Jinghua and Shanghai Jinghua for the year ended 31 December
2009 amounted to HK$5,977,000 (2008: HK$39,243,000).

On 19 December 2008, certain subsidiaries of the Company
renewed the purchase agreement with Shanghai Jinghua for
purchasing polished diamonds from Shanghai Jinghua for the
year ended 31 December 2009. The purchase consideration was
determined based on the category, quantity and the prevailing
market price of the polished diamonds. The total purchases from
Shanghai Jinghua for the year ended 31 December 2009 amounted
to HK$17,413,000 (2008: HK$29,631,000).

On 19 December 2008, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
renewed the polishing service agreement with Qingdao Jinghua
for engaging Qingdao Jinghua to provide rough diamond polishing
services for the year ended 31 December 2009. The processing
fees were charged according to an agreed price list which was
determined with reference to market rates. The total processing
fees charged by Qingdao Jinghua for the year ended 31 December
2009 amounted to HK$840,000 (2008: HK$105,000).

36. BEALRS

FRERAM KRS EM A7
REERID -

PHELR 5K
Kﬁlﬁi BERE A LTI

TEAR

(a)
(i)

(iif)

HEBATETZRS
R—ZEENFEF+=_A+N1AB"
KRAI—REENBRR R E
E-ETNFE+=-A=+—H
TFEFEARMEERENRER
RAEERENRLBERE
fHhmABRAB(TESRE] H
CEERERRITERZERET S
SERERFBERET Y 2 H
EWm - BERERLELARE
HABTEREREERERARZ
MEAR MEEREREERE
RARAARAR —REBHT0%
BREZINBARZ —RFE30%
BiEzZBRR - SENRERZE
A BEREEMEMET - BZE
“ETNFTA=T—HLFE
NEETEERER EBREZR
355,977,000 8T (ZZF )\ ¢
39,243,000/ 7T) «

RZZZNE+=_A+HhB " KD
AIETHBARGREE—STNE
+-RA=t+—RHItFERR FRE
RETEER BT RE T - RER
BIRITEER 2585« HEREER
MEMmMEE - BE_TTNF+_A
=t BIFEANR LERERES
WA17413 0008 L(ZETNF ¢
29,631,000587T)

RZZFZNF+=_A+hAB &2
—ZREENBA Tﬁékﬁ%ﬁim
BE_TTNF+-A=1+—ALF
BRI T ERISERTHTE
R - T BIEHE 2 ERERK
i/ FV%WWE% ETHERE
B BE—ZTThE+-A=1—8
&ifwa%§¥WHZMIAW
%8 /5840,0008 T(Z T2 T N\ &
105,000757T) °
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36.

Connected and related party transactions (continued)

(a)
(iv)

Transactions with connected and/or related parties (continued)

On 1 April 2007, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
renewed the tenancy agreement with the respective spouse of
Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling and Dr. CHOW Kwen Lim and the administrator
of a late Director of the Company for the lease of a retail shop
for the two years ended 31 March 2009 with a monthly rental of
HK$173,000. On 31 March 2009, such tenancy agreement was
further renewed for the two years ending 31 December 2011 with
a monthly rental of HK$163,000. The lease rentals were determined
with reference to open market rentals. The total rental paid by
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 amounted to
HK$1,986,000 (2008: HK$2,070,000).

A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company renewed leases with
related companies, in which certain Directors and their respective
spouse have interests, for the lease of the Company’s Directors’
quarters with an aggregate monthly rental of HK$80,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2009. The lease rentals were determined
with reference to open market rentals. The total rentals paid by
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 amounted to
HK$960,000 (2008: HK$960,000).

All of the above related party transactions also constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Payables to related parties:

Shanghai Jinghua LR
Qingdao Jinghua FERE

The payables to related parties are unsecured, interest-free and payable
within one month after billings.

36. BEALRSZ(HE)

(a)
(iv)

HREBATETZRS (H)

R-ZTZ+EWA—H  ARQ
RE2EHEBED 7@ﬂ%9%$&
FAERBLSAZEBRAAR—
ZEMEEZBERTARRER
—TEHAFE=ZA=+—HIWEAA
FTASETEEHETRY B8R
HEA173,0008T - RZZENEF
ZSRA=t+—-8 ZELOREBE
T+ A=+—BItWESE
EBE: &A% A163,000%8
e ME N2 EAHEMERS
BT AEEREBEE_TTAF
T A=t HIFEREMNTESR
3 /451,986,000/8 L(Z T\ F :
2,070,000 7T) °

AR —RE2ENBARIEET
é%&ﬁ? EXERBHEER
ZEBRARNEE_TThE
A=+ BHLEFERATFAR
RAEEFESEIEYN ERAS
%@%mﬁm%ﬁoﬁﬁﬁg%
AHEMEHESET ASEREH
E-EENET-A=+—RIE
ERHHEEE%A960,0008 T
(ZZZ)\4 : 960,000 7T) °

PR LA LRSI EK LT ARRIE
THAERREZHERERS

JE AT B3 A L BRAN
Group
A58
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET
1,883 244
- "
FENBEALTRFUEEN - 28 RER

BEE—

(EIAIEE
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36. Connected and related party transactions (continued)

(b)

Remuneration of key management personnel of the Group

The aggregate amount of remuneration paid to key management
personnel during the year, including the amounts paid to the
Company's Executive Directors, is as follows:

Fees ok

Salaries and allowances e ko2
Discretionary bonuses paid and payable B K% FE s BB TEAT
Pension scheme contributions RINSETEIME R

Further details of Directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to
the financial statements.

36. BEALRSZ(HE)

(b)

FEBIEEEAENE

R ENZEEEAS MR
B BAREENARARITERE S
M

Group

rEE
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
THEx FET
930 930
17,036 17,017
7,966 8,577
727 726
26,659 27,250

EEMEeHBERMBEREME
8o
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37.

Financial instruments by category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Group
S L]

2009
Financial assets

Other assets

Available-for-sale investments

Accounts receivable

Receivables arising from securities
and futures broking

Financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Investments at fair value through
profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Cash held on behalf of clients

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Accounts payable

Payables arising from securities
and futures broking

Financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals

Derivative financial instruments

Short term interest-bearing bank
borrowings

Long-term interest-bearing bank
borrowings

37. RERSEZEMIA

RBERR - SRR 2 2B TAKEEN

"F
—EZhE
BKEE
Financial
assets at
fair value
through Available-
profit or loss for-sale
- held for Loans and financial
trading receivables assets Total
EAVEE
AIEBEZ
MEEE BRK AEHE
- BEEE P U BR X BkEE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TEx FTEx FTEr
Hin&E - 77,605 - 77,605
A HERE - - 705,255 705,255
RN AR X - 326,272 - 326,272
BHRRERLESEY
JEYHRR - 201,152 - 201,152
BREBRNTIE EEk
H it R BR R 2
HBEE - 19,656 - 19,656
BATEBEIEREL
®E 8,010 - - 8,010
TTHESEMIA 180 - - 180
REPHELRS - 388,012 - 388,012
RekFERRE - 378,999 - 378,999
8,190 1,391,696 705,255 2,105,141
HHEE
Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through Financial
profit or loss liabilities at
- held for amortized
trading cost Total
BAVERE
AIEREZ R
MKaE BARABRZ
- BEEE MigaE &%t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTART FTAERT TERT
FERTER R - 132,231 132,231
EHERBERREE L
JE AR X - 474,205 474,205
BETEMENRRR
[EEtIHE 2 B E - 149,272 149,272
fTHESHMIA 14,096 - 14,096
BT R RITER
- 348,644 348,644
REFERITER
- 249,399 249,399
14,096 1,353,751 1,367,847
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37.

Financial instruments by category (continued)

Group
AL

2008
Financial assets

Other assets

Available-for-sale investments

Accounts receivable

Receivables arising from securities
and futures broking

Financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Investments at fair value through
profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Cash held on behalf of clients

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Loan from an associate

Accounts payable

Payables arising from securities
and futures broking

Financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals

Derivative financial instruments

Short term interest-bearing bank
borrowings

—ZTN\F
BKEE

Hth&E

AHHERE

FEU R

BRRREREELE
FEU AR

BEERNFE B
R EA IR 2
MBBE

BAHEEERB
&

TEEMIA
REFPHELS
RekERRE

MBRE

REFEREZ B

FERHRRR

Bl PERLEL
JEIARSR

BEEEMENRIR
fEEHRB < MERE

TESBMTA

AR RRITER

37. BRERNSBZEMIAGE

Financial
assets at
fair value
through Available-
profit or loss for-sale
- held for Loans and financial
trading receivables assets Total
BATEE
SRR ‘
B A SHR A
- FHEEE JRE s B R BBEE a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
- 74,890 - 74,890
- - 378,084 378,084
- 212,352 - 212,352
- 134,848 - 134,848
- 17,844 - 17,844
5,820 - - 5,820
2,759 — — 2,759
- 325,399 - 325,399
- 145,117 - 145,117
8,579 910,450 378,084 1,297,113
Financial
liabilities
at fair value
through Financial
profit or loss liabilities at
- held for amortized
trading cost Total
BATEE |
SERE, 0 BEH
BSEE  RAARZ ‘
- KEEE BBAaE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
- 128 128
= 70,023 70,023
— 381,942 381,942
- 122,602 122,602
2,769 - 2,769
= 389,099 389,099
2,769 963,794 966,563
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37.

38.

Financial instruments by category (continued)

Company

ARH

Financial assets

Due from subsidiaries
Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities included in other

payables and accruals

Fair value hierarchy

MBEE

JE W Pt 188 22 ) 30
RehERHAE

MBEE

BEEAMBNERK
FEEtRE 2B RE

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the

fair value of financial instruments:

Level 1:

fair values measured based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in

active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2:

fair values measured based on valuation techniques for which

all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair
value are observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3:

fair values measured based on valuation techniques for which

all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair
value are not based on observable market data (unobservable

inputs)

37. BRERNSBZEMIAGE

Loans and receivables

B R YRR
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$°000
TERT TR
418,583 398,823
1,410 1,327
419,993 400,150

Financial liabilities
at amortized cost

BRERF A RHBEE
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TET
1,054 1,046

38. ATEEER

AEERBEERBEEERIAZAYEE
RANTER -

R —

BH=

WA=

AFEERIEREEXARE
HRBT IS BE(REH

®)ite

AFEEEREERLME
RIGERIEE - MRl
REMEBYHCEEATEER
AEAFEZHBOIEE

AVFEERGBERNTE
&% B R A P A $ 2 ddk
AFEEREATECHE
BRERAEBET S8R
(RABREHE)
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38.

39.

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

As at 31 December 2009, the Group held the following financial
instruments measured at fair value:

Assets measured at fair value as at 31 December 2009:

Level 1
& Al—
HK$'000
FEx
Available-for-sale investments: A fit HERE :
Equity investments RHILE 690,518
Investments at fair value BRAFEBEIICRE
through profit or loss BE 8,010
Derivative financial fTEemT A
instruments -
698,528
Liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 December 2009:
Level 1
& Al—
HK$'000
FET

Derivative financial instruments

TESRIA

During the year ended 31 December 2009, there were no transfers of fair
value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or
out of Level 3.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank
borrowings, and cash and bank deposits. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as accounts receivable and accounts payable, which
arise directly from its operations.

The Group’s overall risk management policies focus on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential
adverse effects on the Group's financial performance. Risk
management is carried out by management under the policies
approved by the Board and it identifies, evaluates and monitors
financial risks in close co-operation with the Group's operating
units.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
equity securities price risk. The Board reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarized below.

38. AT EEER(E)
RZZZENF+_A=+—H K&EEH
BUATEATEBFEZEHMIA
KEEENGS = f=+—ARAFEE
HEZAE

Level 2 Level 3 Total
&A= A= &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FERx FERT FER
13,998 - 704,516
- - 8,010
180 - 180
14,178 - 712,706
KEEEAG+ = f=+—ARAFEE
FTEZAE
Level 2 Level 3 Total
&A= A= &t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT
14,096 - 14,096
REBE_ZENEFT_A=+—HLFE
A BA—RARR =z B EAEEBES
SEE  TESASELLR= -

39. MBEEREEBERBE

(a) HEERBREZR

AEBEZTReMTABRERTE
o REeRBIER - HEESRT
BAZIBRBNRAKEZERSE
KE8% - AREHETHEMUBE
ENAE WEEKBEEBELZ
FEMRR R X e AR K o

AEBzERRAREERRH S
BT 5 2 REATRANE - Y STIRE
HAKEMBRABKZBETF
FE -ERERIHAERERESE
FEMRZBRET MERER
AEBEZ2EBNETAE A
- AR ERAERER o

AEBEERMTAMELZ T ERAR
AMNERRE MERE  EER
B RBETERRERNESER
Bk - EF SRR T T XA
MEE R FRR 2B -
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39.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk due to potential changes
in interest rates of interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities.
Interest-bearing financial assets are mainly loans to margin clients
whereas interest-bearing financing liabilities are primarily bank
borrowings with primarily floating interest rates which expose the

Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

For Hong Kong dollars floating-rate borrowings, assuming the
amount of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole year, a 50 basis-point
increase/decrease in interest rates at 31 December 2009 and
2008 would have decreased/increased the Group's profit before
tax by HK$1,247,000 and HK$410,000, respectively. For Renminbi
a 50 basis-point increase/decrease
in interest rates at 31 December 2009 and 2008 would have
decreased/increased the Group's profit before tax by HK$1,707,000
and HK$1,456,000, respectively. The sensitivity to the interest
rate used is considered reasonable, with all other variables held

floating-rate borrowings,

constant.

The Group's interest rate risk exposure also arises from margin
financing and other lending activities. The Group has the legal
capacity to quickly recall such loans or re-price its loans to an
appropriate level. A 50 basis-point increase/decrease in interest
rates at 31 December 2009 and 2008 would have increased/
decreased the Group’s profit before tax by HK$493,000 and
HK$305,000, respectively. The analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of assets carried at the end of the reporting period was
carried for the whole year. The sensitivity to interest rate used is

considered reasonable, with all other variables held constant.

The Group's policy is to obtain the most favourable interest rates
available without increasing its foreign currency exposure. In
addition, the Group monitors the level of interest rate exposure
and considers utilizing hedging instruments should the need arise.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures mainly arising
from sales and purchases by operating units in currencies other
than the units’ functional currency. The Group uses foreign
exchange forward contracts to manage certain of its foreign
currency exposures on significant and recurring future commercial
transactions mainly relating to its US dollar-denominated purchases.

Hedging is only considered for firm commitments.

The Group’s assets and liabilities are mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollars. Currency risk is managed by partly financing non-
Hong Kong dollar assets with loans denominated in the relevant

currency.

39. BBEBEEBRERIGE(E)

(a)

Mi%ﬁlﬁi(%’é)

FIEE

$'§IE STEMBEEREBEZ
NEBEEHMAZHRRME o 5
EMBEEFERFREFER
s SHBEBEFERRITEN
FTERIHHEGE  BBAKE
AXBERENERR -

IETFBAHRERMS © BER
%&%Hﬂﬂmz:@%%m%
FEER AEXRR_ZTTAER
—TENFE+-A= + Ei“ﬂﬂ/
B SO EEZE - #5D BIR D18
AN & B B A F1,247,000 7 7T
5410,000/8 7T - EAREZEHF
REFME  FERR_ZTTNER
—EENFE+-_A=1+—A%m/
A S0 EEZE - BaBlE D, i
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39.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk

The accounts receivable and receivables arising from securities and
futures broking represent the Group’s major exposure to the credit
risk arising from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these financial assets
in the consolidated statement of financial position. The Group's
retail sales on jewellery are usually transacted on a cash basis,
via popular credit cards or through reputable and dispersed
department stores. The Group's credit sales to wholesale customers
are generally on credit term within 45 days. The Group has no
significant concentrations of credit risk with respect to its jewellery
retail business as it has a large number of diversified customers.
For accounts receivable arising from the wholesale of diamonds
and precious metals, the Group trades only with recognized and
creditworthy third parties and bullion banks. The Group’s margin
clients accounts receivable arising from the ordinary course of
business of dealing in securities are secured by the underlying
pledged securities. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and has its credit control policy
to minimize the credit risk. In addition, all receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and overdue balances are followed
up by senior management. Accordingly, the Group’s exposure to

bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which mainly
comprise cash and cash equivalents, deposits and other receivables
and derivative financial instruments, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying

amounts of these instruments.

The Company is also exposed to credit risk through the granting of
financial guarantees to certain subsidiaries, further details of which

are disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from accounts receivable and receivables arising
from securities and futures broking are disclosed in note 22 to the

financial statements.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuation in cash flows. The Group's treasury
department’s responsibility is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of banking
facilities in order to meet its liquidity requirements both in the
short term and long term. The Group maintains significant flexibility
to respond to opportunities and events by ensuring that committed
credit lines are available. All debts of the Group as at 31 December

2009 would mature within three years.

39. BBEBREEBRERIGK(E)

(a)

B m b R & ()
EEER
REERRESIHERLEEZ
FEER I ARERRRZ 5 HTF T
BOMEAZIEEERR &5
EBRASEREEBBERRK T I F
HBEECREE - AEBZKE
TEHEREUARS BBERE
%fﬁﬁ@%%ﬁﬂ&ﬁﬂZﬁE
NEETT - REEASLERPHET
ZEEHE—REROTRARNZR
BREETT - MNIRBTEXLER
REDBEF  HUBERERZ
FERR REBEOLRESBHE
EXZRYERS - AEEERER
REBEBZE=ZEREHETR
7 ARBARRRBTESEER
EEZRRHFREPERABHED
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YRR R B AR YRABEE
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Fi BEREERRZE—FE(L

BERRPBREM 22 hIE -

BB R/

EERRBESRARAE K
SEERVHARRE RERRLRN
ERABRRRHAKT  REAEKE
.Eﬂqiﬁiéi&zﬁﬂfﬁéﬁ/\mg
BBz HE -  ARBEHBHMZE
EREBEARITEERESZH
FH&*EEZWW T - BARR
GHEHERBRBEST R - K
SERBHREFISEEAH
FEEREE  #RHTMEEMEACE
BEREN - RZTTNFT A
=+—B FAEEMEREHR
=FRNFH -

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEEEBEBEBEERLQA

@

ANNUAL REPORT 2009

2009 & %R



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g

39.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, are disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements. The
maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted

payment, is as follows:

2009

Financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals

Guarantee given to banks in
connection with facilities granted
to subsidiaries

Total

2008

Financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals

Guarantee given to banks in
connection with facilities granted

—EBNF

BEEEMRNRR L ERT
HEZHBRE

B R RER 2 EEMR
TTHRHER

BEERMENERRRE
BRZHMBRE

R BARER ZEEAR
TTHRHHER

to subsidiaries

Total

Equity securities price risk

Equity securities price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity
indices and the value of individual securities. The fair values of
these listed equity investments are affected by market forces and
other factors. The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising
from individual equity investments classified as available-for-sale
investments (note 20) and trading equity investments (note 24) as
at 31 December 2009. The Group's listed investments are listed
on the Stock Exchange and are valued at quoted market prices at
the end of the reporting period. The majority of the listed equity
investments are held for non-trading purposes.

39. HIHEREBEEERBE(HE)

(a) HMHEEBREZ(E)

B E DR ()
RBREHR - AEBREINER
FRFIBAE 2 BB R BEE
MR BERERF2PHE - ©
BEHR - AR RIRE AT AERTT
RREHEHBEAEZHEER

LUl
On Less than
demand 3 months Total
BEXR =@AUT |t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR TER FTER
= 1,054 1,054
598,043 - 598,043
598,043 1,054 599,097
On Less than

demand 3 months Total
REK =@ARKT &&f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHET FHET
- 1,046 1,046
389,099 - 389,099
389,099 1,046 390,145

RO EFER @
BOEFERRRERNESZA
FEERBMNEEUKT RERES
BELREDHM Pk ER - 1hF
EHROEBREZAFEEXTHN
EREMREZZE - AREAR
“ERNFT A=+ -HERHE
AAHEERE(ME20)RER
R 15 1% & (KT 5 24) 2 8 B AR 13 3%
BEmAZROERRR - KEEZ
ERERERERA LT AREH
RIBTEAE - REED WA
REDHEFEERE -
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39. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

39. MBEBERERERIKE)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a)
Equity securities price risk (continued)
The market equity indices for the Stock Exchange, at the close of
business of the nearest trading day in the year to the end of the
reporting period, and their respective highest and lowest points
during the year are as follows:
2009
31 December High/low
+=A=+-A B/
Hong Kong - Hang Seng B - BEE 21,873 23,099/
Index 11,344
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10%
change in the fair values of the equity investments, with all other
variables held constant and before any impact on tax, based on
their carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting period.
For the purpose of this analysis, for the available-for-sale equity
investments the impact is deemed to be on the investment
revaluation reserve and no account is given for factors such as
impairment which might impact on the income statement.
Carrying
amount
of equity
investments
BB REZ
IREE
HK$'000
THET
2009 —EENF
Investments listed in Hong Kong REB LM ZEE
Available-for-sale AEEE 690,518
Held-for-trading RHIEEE 8,010
Unlisted investments at fair value BATEEZELMRE
Available-for-sale A e 13,998
2008 “EEN\F
Investments listed in Hong Kong REE LT ZRE
Available-for-sale e 364,577
Held-for-trading BIEEE 5,820
Unlisted investments at fair value BATEEZELITRE
Available-for-sale AEHE 12,768

BEEBREE(H)

R ZEFEEE (E)
RAEEREIREHRZLHH
LERRERE BT ZmBR
NEARERTARENZRERR
REET

2008
31 December High/low
+=A=+—~H ®/1&
14,387 27,854/
10,676

TRETERHERRZ RHER
B RAEMEHIE REt AL
ARBAFEMHRNETERTEE
BI0% BB 2HREE - RADMN
s HARHERNKECER
FEWGRAREEMREENT
£ BYESRRBESUEZER
HRIAEE

Increase/
decrease Increase/
in profit decrease
before tax in equity
BB AR R &
i,/ mD &,/ WL
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET
- 69,052
801 -
- 1,400
- 36,458
582 -
- 1,277
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39.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

(b) Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain a healthy capital ratio in order to support its business and

to enhance shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions and business
strategies. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, raise and
repay debts or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements except for certain
subsidiaries engaged in securities and futures dealing and broking,
which are regulated entities under the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong (“SFC”), and a subsidiary engaged in
bullion broking, which is a member of CGSE. During these two
years, these subsidiaries complied with respective minimum capital
requirements imposed by SFC and CGSE. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during

the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total
borrowings to total shareholders’ equity. Total borrowings include
interest-bearing bank borrowings. Total shareholders’ equity
comprises all components of equity attributable to shareholders of
the Company. The Group's policy is to maintain the gearing ratio at
a reasonable level. The gearing ratios at the ends of the reporting

periods as follows:

Total borrowings BEEREE
Total shareholders’ equity

Gearing ratio

39. BBEBREEBRERIGK(E)

(b)

EXER
AEBREFER T ERABRARE
AEBERFERERB 2N Uk
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AEBRCBEARN R EE R 2 &
PERHERARE  YHHEFELSR
B RERARAEBRARE K%
B R AR AR RIRMN 2 MRS - 18
MEEEGEERETHR - RET
MEBARNKEESRAEEERE
EEBMAREBEEEESIIESE
BERZBE([EEGHZXAE
BB UR—ZMBLAAREES
BREEBMATREE S5 28
BN AEEEAETEMIEE
BZEBEARRE - RZMEFER -
ZEMBARETEEGRERE
BARREERIREEARBE
BE_ZTAFR-_ZT/\F+=
A=t—ALFE  AREEHRE
AZBT - BRKBEFUEELE
ER

ARBERERAGBLXR(AMEER
BULBRRER A ERER -
EERHEBREFRRITEN - KR
RELHERADRRREGERS
ZHEERD - AEBZBRAKE
ARELXEREREKT - R
SHMRZERGELENT

Group

A%EE
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER THT
(Restated)
(&%)
598,043 389,099
3,928,790 3,205,768
15.2% 12.1%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g

40.

41.

Comparative amounts

As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial statements, due to
the adoption of new and revised HKFRSs during the current year, the
accounting treatment and presentation of certain items and balances
in the financial statements have been revised to comply with the new
requirements. Accordingly, certain prior year adjustments have been made
and certain comparative amounts have been reclassified and restated to
conform with the current year’s presentation and accounting treatment.

Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the
Board of Directors on 30 March 2010.

40.

41.

tEgr
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD

As at 31 December 2009

iR

R-BEAFT=A=+—R

Gross Lease
Description Lot Number Use Floor Area Type Term
1 B3R & A& EEEE EH HE
(Sq. ft. approx.)
(R&FAR)
Hong Kong
5H
#229 Nathan Road, Kowloon K.I.L. 6357 Rental/own use  31,225* Commercial ~ Medium
NEBZEE - - N5 aE i = b %
* G/F & M/F, 326-328 Castle Peak Road, N.K.I.L. 2507 & Rental/own use ~ 2,790* Commercial ~ Medium
Kowloon 2177 ,
NEBWEZ - AEZ -\ T ERE g = EES H
* GIF & 1/F 99-101 Wuhu Street, Hunghom, H.H.ILL. 472, 471 Oown use 2,345* Commercial ~ Medium
Kowloon & 447 s A ,
NEAMEPENLTNAE-S-—FH TR BH [EES H
* Roof, G/F & 1/F, 432 Prince Edward Road ~ N.K.I.L. 2266 R.P. Rental/own use  1,788* Commercial ~ Medium
West, Kowloon ,
BATEANZ=—5T - —2EKE P = EES H
Flat A, 11/F and Roof, 199 Nam Cheong N.K.I.L. 1230 Rental 551%* Residential Medium
Street, Kowloon s.ARP & )
NEEEHA-NNARTBABERS s.B.ss.2 A F= H
2/F Flats A & B, 3/F, 4/F 5/F & Flat A 6/F,  K.I.L. 6642 Rental/own use ~ 10,836* Commercial ~ Medium
231 Nathan Road, Kowloon ,
ERTE—=— & ZBARBE: i EES H
Mg - AERNIEAR
Units A1, A2, A3, A4, A6, A8, A11, A13, N.K.I.L. 3515 s C, Rental/own use 39,713 Industrial Medium
1/F & Unit A4, 8/F & Units A3, A4, A5, D&F
A7, A9, 10/F, Block A, 489-491 Castle
Peak Rpad, Kowloon ‘
EELBNANZENA—SFAE—E ey =z I% H
A1 A2 *A3 A4 A6 ‘A8 “A11 A13E -
JMEAERTHEA3 A4 A5 AT R
AQE
Car Ports No. 7 & 22 on G/F, Car Ports No. K.I.L. 10223 Own use N/A Car park Long
26 & 57 in Basement, Ho On Mansion,
107-109 Austin Road, Kowloon R )
ﬂ%‘éﬁi’@@*%@t?*?ﬂ?ﬁﬂ§f§iﬁ? BA i B &
BRI ZREMEEM TR
B+t
Car Parking Space No. B162 in Basement, R.P. of K.I.L. Rental N/A Car park Long
Balwin Court, 154-164 Argyle Street, 4208
Kowloon B )
%Eﬁ%%?i]\—ﬂﬂi—/_\ﬂﬁﬁ%%%ﬁiﬁ@ A NEH B &
B162 SEfI
* G/F-3/F, 691-693 Nathan Road, Kowloon K.I.L. 2444 s AR.P. Rental/own use  9,890* Commercial  Long
& 2444 R.P.
NEBIEAN—ZEANZFHTEZE ey =y [HES &
* 85 Castle Peak Road, Yuen Long, Lot No. 3640 in Own use 3,255 Commercial ~ Medium
__New Territories D.D. 120 ‘
HATHATUABNTRRE2E BA [EES H
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD FrsEmEFE

As at 31 December 2009 RZZZhE+-_A=+—H
Gross Lease
Description Lot Number Use Floor Area Type Term
e SR R BEEE BE A
(Sq. ft. approx.)
(RHFAR)

Hong Kong
0

* Shop B, G/F, 428-430 Prince Edward Road  N.K.l.L. 2267 R.P. Own use 1,078* Commercial ~ Medium
West, Kowloon & 2268 R.P. ‘
EAFERN - \ZEN=Z%it T84 B8R [EES H
* Shop B, G/F, 70-78 Kwong Fuk Road, Tai Tai Po Town Lot Own use 2,089* Commercial ~ Medium
__Po, New Territories No. 28 ‘
MAAEERECTEET /SR T B B8R [EES i
Shop No. 305, G/F, Lok Hin Terrace, 350 Chai Wan Inland Rental 175* Commercial ~ Medium
Chai Wan Road Hong Kong Lot No. 149 ‘
BEREE= ﬁ?ﬁm%AmT,Tﬁfﬁ Hi [EES i
Mainland China
FER
Unit 501, Block 4, Meile Village, Rongshan N/A Own use 1,010 Residential Long

Community Association, Ronggui Street
Representative Office, Shunde District,
Foshan City, Guan dong Province

?%é%Mm@ﬁEA%m EMERDIE TNER EA Fx &
ZEELNNERT—E

East of Guangzhu Highway, N/A Rental/own use 123,700 Industrial/ Medium
Licun Management Zone, Licun District, commercial

Lunjiao Town, Shunde District,
Foshan City, Guan dong Province

BREBLTIEZRRAAZNEER TER Hi8,/ B I¥/%8%
FE TR B SR A

10-21-3 Zone, Luoxing Road, Mawei Free ~ N/A Rental 188,050 Industrial/ Medium
Trade Zone, Fuzhou, commercial
Fujian Provmce

BRABNTERERRRERK 10213/ & TEHR H T /7%

* Unit No. 1-1, Fuilihua Mansion, N/A Own use 1,906 Commercial  Long

No. 150 Qinghui Road, Daliang Town,
Shunde District, Foshan City,
Guangdong Province B

EELRILDBEEARRERR— BT TR o E £

BEEAERZ—

16/F, Block B, R&F Yingtai Plaza, Section N/A Own use 23,553 Commercial Medium
2, No. 100 Huangpu Avenue, Tianhe
District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province

fﬁémeiﬂEﬁﬁﬁL e i A =) EES H
“RENBLES BEE"’/\JE

Unit Nos. 1601-1602, 16/F, Block B, N/A Own use 5,025 Commercial Medium
Wangzuo International City, No.3
Tangyan Road, Gaoxin District, Xian
City, Shaanxi Province
PR L B RS R RER T T Hg &
BF‘(’ME ANE—Z2—REZFE

* Location of branches
DITHLE

* Saleable area

AEREE
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Mixed Sources

Product group from well-managed 25%
forests, controlled sources and

recycled wood or fiber
www.fsc.org Cert no. SGS-COC-002116
© 1996 Forest Stewardship Council
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